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CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

Dear Shareholder

I am pleased to present the 2004 Annual Report for what has been an extremely active 12 months for our Thundelarra

Exploration Ltd (“Thundelarra”).

During the past year Thundelarra carried out an intensive exploration program on the 1,518 square kilometres of the East

Kimberley (“Retained Area”) nickel base metal project that fell within our control under the LionOre Australia Ltd (“Lion Ore”)

Joint Venture Agreement.  LionOre are exploring 1,412 kilometres to earn 60% by spending $5 million over 4 years.

Thundelarra on its own account drilled a total of 488 metres for a total of 5 holes and collected and assayed 4,562 of soil,

stream and rock chips samples.  Thundelarra undertook geophysical testing of 6 prospects with many line kilometres of

ground electro magnetic (“EM”) survey and flew 5,000 square kilometres of airborne hyperspectral survey in conjunction

with our joint venture partner LionOre.

Our joint venture partner at Copernicus, Sally Malay Mining Ltd (“Sally Malay”) drilled 16 holes for 3,057 metres to make a

total of 5,913 metres thus far on the project.  

There is now a indicated resource of 359,000 tonnes of ore grading 1.3% nickel, 0.7% copper, 0.05% cobalt and drilling

further north by Sally Malay has defined a down dip of the shoot which clearly indicated the potential to increase the

resource size and will require further drilling.  Sally Malay are the managers of that project in which they can earn 60% and

we are hopeful they will undertake further drilling on the project this coming season.

LionOre where active on the remainder of the joint venture ground and they completed 14 holes for 2,893 metres of

reverse circulation drilling and collected 2,737 rock, soil and stream samples and extensive geophysics including down hole

EM, ground EM and IP surveys.

Of the remaining areas in Thundelarra’s retained area, the wealth of data generated during the year has outlined 8 areas

covering a strike length of some 50 km as our priority exploration targets.  These will all be tested by airborne geophysics

(helicopter EM) at the start of the field season.  This work will direct the drilling programmes planned for the remainder of

the year. The upshot of all this is we are poised to drill test the Billymac, Highway, Bow, Mabel Hill and Lamboo targets in the

coming season.  

As a result of the hyperspectral survey, a potential for diamonds within the East Kimberley project has been identified and

further pegging of ground to secure targets has taken place.  An agreement with Rio Tinto Australia Ltd (“Rio Tinto”) has

given access to the 1,084 km2 Chamberlain project which contains an kimberlite occurrence, indicator minerals and

diamonds.

At the Lamboo project in the East Kimberley, which abuts Terra Gold’s Nicholson’s Find gold plant work assessed gold

targets within the tenement area.  Rock sampling of a 250 metres strike of the Shifty’s Reef, an 800 metres long 2 metres

wide quartz vein has been carried out.  Sixteen of the 31 samples returned gold grades above 10 g/t with six of these above

1 oz/t.  The highest result is 111 g/t Au.  The area has good potential to host a shallow high grade gold deposit, and further

detailed exploration will continue.
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United Gold Ltd did not float after an in specie distribution to all shareholders of Thundelarra.  Directors are now

considering a number of options available that will give benefits to existing United Gold Ltd shareholders.

United Kimberley Diamonds Ltd (“UKD”) was a successful float and what were previously Thundelarra’s diamond assets in

the Central Kimberley have been merged to form what the Directors consider to be a powerful base for diamond exploration

and possible future mining.  

By consolidating our Phillips Range Diamond Project with other areas in the Central Kimberley, it not only delivered us 23%

stake in UKD but it also allows our exploration team to continue diamond exploration due to our recent acquisition from Rio

Tinto in the Chamberlain River area of the East Kimberley nearby to our nickel base metals projects and infrastructure.

The generation of so many targets in such a large area as the East Kimberley is credit to our staff and I personally thank

them for their endeavours.  I thank my fellow directors for their contribution and encouragement throughout the year.  An

outstanding feature of your company is the high percentage of shares held by our directors and the fact that they continue

to buy additional stock throughout the year which has to be a mark of confidence in what we are attempting to achieve.

I believe we are on the brink of some outstanding discoveries in the Kimberley’s but it will take effort and fortitude along

with a degree of patience.  I would like to think you are still in there supporting your company when that occurs.

Yours faithfully,

THUNDELARRA EXPLORATION LTD

Philip G Crabb

CHAIRMAN

CHAIRMAN’S LETTER
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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EAST KIMBERLEY NICKEL PROJECT

Thundelarra Exploration Ltd has the largest tenement holding within the East Kimberley with over 2,900 square kilometres

(“km2”) of prospective nickel, gold and diamond tenure (see tenement location map on page 4).

Under a regional agreement with LionOre Australia Ltd (“LionOre”) Thundelarra explores some 1,500 km2 in its own right

and LionOre is farming into 1,400 km2 by the expenditure of $5 million.  In addition, Sally Malay Mining Ltd (“Sally Malay”) is

exploring the 1.2 km2 area over the Copernicus resource and Copernicus North mineralisation under a joint venture where

Sally Malay have the right to earn a 60% equity by completing a feasibility study on the project.

The East Kimberley has exceptional prospectivity for nickel sulphide mineralisation, hosted within the 50 or more mafic to

ultramafic intrusions that have been identified within the area to date.  The intrusions range in age from 1,860 million years

(“Ma”) to 1,830 Ma and were emplaced at depths of 8 to 22 km.  They are unusual in that they have the right chemistry

and have been subject to processes which allow sulphide, within which nickel collects, to have been separated out during

emplacement of the intrusion itself.  Within the East Kimberley intrusions nickel sulphides are known to have repeatedly

formed within different intrusions types throughout a long period of time.

Nickel sulphide, located at the base of intrusions or within feeder pipes linking into them are an important source of the

world’s nickel. This style of mineralisation includes world class deposits such as Voisey’s Bay in Canada.

Details of Thundelarra’s and its joint venture partners work is presented on the following pages:

THUNDELARRA EAST KIMBERLEY NICKEL – COPPER EXPLORATION

Some 18 new intrusions have been identified by field mapping and some 10 gossans discovered.  Over 4,500 samples

collected during the year have defined anomalous nickel geochemical within a variety of intrusions.  Portions of six prospect

areas were surveyed by fixed and moving loop transient electromagnetic (“EM”) techniques.  Seven conductors were outlined

by this work.  Drilling has taken place over three prospects with five Reverse Circulation (“RC”) drillholes for 488m completed.

PANTON AREA

At the Panton project ground EM defined a 100m long conductor at the 028PAN prospect.  A single hole, TCC003 drilled

into the prospect intersected massive sulphide at 37-38m.  This interval returned an assay of 0.4% copper, 0.077% nickel

and 0.03% cobalt.  The conductor is open along strike to the north.  This is the first magmatic sulphide occurrence within

Panton Group Intrusives.  Over 20 km in strike length of these units crop out within the project.

The Mabel Hill prospect centres over a series of irregular gossans developed at the uneven base of the Wild Dog Gabbro

intrusion where it is in contact with felsic schist of the Tickalara Metamorphics.  Historical drilling of the gossan has returned

up to 3.8m @ 1.5% nickel.  Thundelarra carried out ground EM surveying over a 350m strike of this area which resulted in the

identification of a 100m long conductor.  Downhole EM (“DHEM”) surveying utilizing historical drill holes is planned to focus

further drilling next season.  The 15 km long contact zone within the tenement area is prospective and a number of gossans,

geochemical anomalism and magnetic features along the contact define an extensive area to be tested by geophysics.

Some 18 new intrusions have been identified by

field mapping and some 10 gossans discovered.

Over 4,500 samples collected during the year have

defined anomalous nickel geochemical within a

variety of intrusions. 
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BOW RIVER AREA

At the Bow River project ground EM defined a 300m long conductor at the 007BOW prospect.  Two holes spaced 40m

apart were sited to intercept this feature but drilling failed to explain the conductive feature.  Weak copper-nickel

geochemistry was intersected within a gabbro but only minor sulphides are present.  Downhole EM will be carried out to

provide more information as to the type and location of the conductive feature which can then be tested by further drilling.

BILLYMAC AREA

The Corridor Gabbro, a group of intrusions forming long sinuous bodies within the western portion of the project displays a

complex geology in the Paperbark - Billymac Yard and Sandy Creek areas.  At Billymac Yard recent work by Thundelarra has

identified gossan and nickel - copper soil geochemical anomalism along an 8 km strike.  Rock chip sampling has returned up

to 4.9% copper and 0.25% nickel.  Three fixed loop EM surveys tested portions of the contact and defined three

conductors.  An aboriginal heritage survey over the proposed drill program failed to clear the area for drilling.  Further

negotiations are continuing to determine if it may be possible to explore the area next season.

REGIONAL WORK

Regional work has included an airborne Hyperspectral Survey conducted by DeBeers Australia Hyperspectral Business Unit

(“DBHU”).  This survey, jointly commissioned by Thundelarra and LionOre has covered all of the tenements under the East

Kimberley Regional agreement.  The Hyperspectral system is a mineral mapping technique developed and refined by De Beers to

locate minerals associated with ultramafic kimberlites.  The DBHP scanner is mounted in a high flying aircraft and measures the

reflectance spectra of minerals within the visible and infrared range.  This system is perfectly suited for locating minerals

associated with mafic and in particular ultramafic intrusions in areas of excellent outcrop such as the East Kimberley.

Much of the regional project area has been mapped and ground traversed with stream and soil sampling follow up.  Over 18

new mafic and ultramafic intrusions, including the previously unrecognized Frank Hill ultramafic which covers some 30 km2

have been identified by this recent work.  Initial sampling over Frank Hill has returned anomalous results with up to 4%

copper in rock chip sampling and anomalous nickel within the single soil traverse completed.

PLANNED EXPLORATION

The DBHU hyperspectral data will aid in the exploration for nickel-copper, diamonds and gold and fast-track exploration in a

way that has never been available to past explorers.  Intensive processing of the survey data is continuing.

An understanding of the geology combined with data from the hyperspectral survey and geochemistry has identified seven

principle prospective corridors.  These are the Mabel Hill, Panton, Wild Dog, Frank Hill, Robin Soak, McIntosh and Mini trends.

These corridors total some 54 km in strike length and cover the base of intrusions over which gossan or geochemical

signatures suggestive of nickel sulphide mineralisation have been identified.

These contact zones are the first targets to be tested by geophysical methods in the 2005 season, and planning is

underway to for a helicopter mounted EM system survey to commence in March 2005.  It is anticipated that together with

existing conductors these surveys will enable considerable drilling during the early part of the field season and permits to

allow this to proceed are being lodged.

THUNDELARRA EAST KIMBERLEY GOLD EXPLORATION

The Lamboo Project, located at the south of the project area has good potential to host a shallow high grade gold resource

and is located only 4 km from the Terra Gold Mining Ltd gold plant at Nicolson’s Find.

Well defined targets exist, including the Brett’s Find prospect.  This 800m long 2m wide quartz vein is at an early stage of

exploration.  A 250m strike extent has recently been rock chip sampled and sixteen of the thirty-one samples returned

above 10 g/t gold with results up to 111 g/t gold.  Follow up sampling confirmed the reefs continuity and a single rock

sample, collected 400m further along strike returned 8.4g/t gold.  Historical work includes the drilling of 12 holes along a

165m strike length of the vein.  These all intersected mineralisation returning up to 10.3 g/t gold from 44m with an average

grade of 4.2 g/t gold.  Hyperspectral data clearly identifies the reef and its marginal alteration and displays a number of

similar features that will be followed up as high priority targets.
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THUNDELARRA EAST KIMBERLEY DIAMOND EXPLORATION

Due to the projects proximity to the Argyle Diamond Mine the recently commissioned Hyperspectral data has been

assessed by DBHU for the diamond potential of the Big Ben project.  Over 20 anomalies have been generated by this work

and seven targets with spectral signatures characteristic of those associated with kimberlite and lamproite have been

visited and sampled.  Results are pending.

LIONORE EAST KIMBERLEY JOINT VENTURE

A strategic alliance was entered into with LionOre over the East Kimberley project in 2003.  Under the East Kimberley

Regional Agreement LionOre is exploring a 1,412 km2 joint venture area by sole funding the first $5 million of exploration

expenditure over 5 years to earn a 60% interest.  Thundelarra may then elect to contribute or dilute to a 20% interest,

free carried to decision to mine.

LionOre have carried out considerable exploration during the 2004 season with work focused over the Eileen Bore, Black

Bull and Sally Bore prospects.  A total of 14 RC drillholes for 2,893m was completed for the year.

Work at Eileen Bore included extensive geophysics, comprising ground EM and IP surveying.  Drilling identified extensions to

the known host pyroxenite but returned sub-economic nickel mineralisation.

A number of prospective intrusions were identified during the year.  Drilling at the Black Bull prospect identified broad but

low grade copper-nickel mineralisation including up to 19m @ 0.52% copper and 0.18% nickel from 64m in hole LEKC012.

This result is encouraging as it identifies the sulphide as being magmatic in origin and indicates a prospective sulphide-

bearing intrusive system is present.

Other regional prospects have also been explored during the year with 2,737 rock, soil and stream geochemical samples

being collected.  Together with the results of the DBHBU hyperspectral data which has been flown over the JV area, a large

number of areas for further exploration have been defined for follow up in the 2005 season.

COPERNICUS JOINT VENTURE WITH SALLY MALAY

On the 2 March 2003, Thundelarra and Sally Malay entered into the Copernicus Joint Venture covering the Copernicus,

Copernicus North and Salk North nickel-copper prospects.  Under the terms of the joint venture, Sally Malay has the right

to earn 60% equity in Mining Lease Application 80/540 (1.2 km2) covering the prospects by completing a feasibility study on

mining the Copernicus resource and processing the ore through the nearby Sally Malay plant.  This study must be

completed by the 6 January 2005.  The revised Indicated open-pit resource estimate for Copernicus stands at 359,000

tonnes at a grade of 1.3% nickel, 0.7% copper and 0.05% cobalt using a 0.5% nickel cut-off grade.  This revised resource

estimate is based on drilling conducted by Sally Malay in 2004.

In 2003 a fixed and moving loop ground EM survey discovered the exciting Copernicus North prospect, the northern down-

plunge extension of the Copernicus mineralisation.  The first hole drilled into the prospect intersected 3m @ 2.75% nickel

and 1.35% copper approximately 120m below surface.

In 2004, Sally Malay completed a program of wide-spaced RC drill holes to broadly define the extent of the mineralisation.

Twelve reverse circulation drill holes, totalling 2,811m were completed for very encouraging results.  Significant drill

intercepts are tabled below:

Drill Hole N E Depth (m) Interval (m) Ni (%) Cu (%) Co (%)

CORC035 102,950 55,325 157-158 3 2.75 1.36 0.082

CORC038 103,000 55,290 157-158 1 0.49 0.50 0.010

CORC039 103,000 55,240 199-216 17 1.36 0.87 0.050
including 199-211 12 1.63 0.96 0.060

CORC040 103,050 55,238 213-215 2 1.10 0.98 0.036

CORC051 103,100 55,200 260-274 14 1.45 1.16 0.050
including 261-273 12 1.55 1.17 0.054

CORC052 103,100 55,150 298-305 7 0.96 0.62 0.036
including 302-305 3 1.42 0.59 0.053

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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The drilling program very successfully defined a north plunging pipe-like body of magmatic nickel-copper sulphide

mineralisation that has the potential to host a significant sulphide resource of the Voisey’s Bay-Sally Malay style (see

attached Copernicus North Long Section).

In September 2004, Sally Malay conducted geophysical DHEM surveys in all of the Copernicus North drill holes.  The

technique can be used to help delineate the overall extent of the sulphide mineralisation by providing reliable estimates of the

distance to mineralisation in drill holes that failed to intersect mineralisation.  Strong off-hole EM anomalies were detected in

all of the surveyed holes that failed to intersect mineralisation.  The drilling and DHEM surveys clearly indicate that the

Copernicus-Copernicus North mineralisation is continuous over 500m strike and remains open down plunge to the north.

The sulphide body is lenticular in shape with a true width of up to 15m and a down dip extent of up to 120m, possibly more.

The body plunges approximately 40 degrees to the north and dips 45 degrees to the west.  

Further exploration drilling by the joint venture partners is expected early next year after the feasibility study document is

completed by Sally Malay and accepted by the Thundelarra Board.    

CHAMBERLAIN DIAMOND PROJECT

In December 2004 Thundelarra signed a Letter of Intent with Rio Tinto Exploration Pty Limited (“RTE”) to acquire a 100%

equity in RTE’s extensive East Kimberley Chamberlain Diamond Project.  The Chamberlain Project is located on the edge of

the Kimberley Plateau, approximately 160 kms south west of Kununurra and 70 kms west of the Argyle diamond mine and

consists of 5 granted exploration licenses covering over 1,000 km2 (see attached tenement location map).

During the early 1980’s regional kimberlitic indicator sampling programs discovered kimberlitic chromites and micro-

diamonds within the Chamberlain area.  Subsequent exploration within the current tenement area discovered a 5kg block of

kimberlite float within one small drainage.  In 1997 an airborne DIGHEM survey (electromagnetic and magnetic) identified a

zone of magnetic lineaments at least 3 km wide, trending NNE for at least 50 km through the Project.  Ground

investigations identified features believed to represent concealed kimberlite dykes paralleling weakly magnetic dolerite dykes.

In 2003 RTE successfully drilled a narrow kimberlite dyke adjacent to one of the numerous dolerites in the area.

The concealed kimberlite dykes and possible ‘blow-outs’ are attractive targets for diamond exploration in the East Kimberley.

In Canada for example, De Beers are scheduled to commence underground mining of their Snap Lake kimberlite dyke deposit
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in 2005.  This narrow kimberlite dyke has a published resource of 22.8 million tonnes grading 1.46 carats per tonne with an

average carat value of US$74.  

Chamberlain is a particularly appealing exploration project to Thundelarra because the main search area is well defined by

the dolerite dyke swarm (50 kms by 3 kms) and kimberlite dykes and micro-diamonds have already been identified within the

area of the tenements.  Thundelarra has commissioned a Hyperspectral survey over the area with 12 high priority targets

identified from the first pass interrogation of the data.  Each of these sites has been located in the field during a helicopter

reconnaissance survey and access routes plotted for next year’s exploration program.

As soon as the weather conditions permit, Thundelarra will fly a detailed low level airmagnetic survey over the target area.

The results from this survey will compliment the hyperspectral targets to allow field testing at the beginning of the next field

season.  Ground assessment including drilling will commence once all necessary approvals are in place.  

Under the terms of the agreement, if Thundelarra discovers a mineral resource that has an in-ground value of $500 million

or more, RTE will hold an option to purchase from Thundelarra either a 51% beneficial interest in the project by paying

Thundelarra 3 times its discovery costs or 70% by paying 4 times the discovery costs.  If RTE exercises its Back-In Option,

RTE will have the right, but not the obligation, to market its share of diamond production and to market 50% of

Thundelarra’s share.  Thundelarra will have the right to market all diamonds if RTE does not exercise its Back-In Option.

Thundelarra is required to pay RTE $100,000 in cash or shares if it still holds the tenements on the 14 December 2005

and $2 million on making the decision to mine any mineral located within the Project area.

PYRAMID NICKEL PROJECT, WEST PILBARA

The Pyramid nickel project, (Thundelarra 100%) was pegged during the year and comprises three tenement applications

covering some 468 km2 within the Archaean aged West Pilbara craton.  Tenements are located some 35 km east of the

Radio Hill nickel mine and 5 km south of the Sherlock Bay nickel resource.

The project covers layered mafic and ultramafic intrusions with potential for nickel sulphide mineralisation.  The tenements

secure extensive portions of the Opaline Well Intrusive suite and the southern margin of the Sherlock intrusion.  Both have

had little past nickel exploration and are extensively obscured by recent cover.  A 20 km portion of the Cooya Pooya Dolerite

is also secured.  A gossan developed at the base of an olivine cumulate zone of this unit assayed up to 1.56g/t Pt+Pd+Au

and 0.2% nickel.  The intrusion displays features of both intrusive and extrusive origins and will be explored for Raglan style

nickel sulphide mineralisation.

OTHER PROJECTS

New projects and opportunities are actively sought by Thundelarra and several tenement applications were made during the

year.  These cover grassroots areas prospective for gold, diamonds and nickel and are located outside of the core Kimberley

and West Pilbara areas.

The Red Rock gold project was pegged during the year and consists of one exploration licence application.  It secures 50

km2 of poorly exposed greenstone rocks along the Tabba Tabba shear, 35 km along strike from the De Grey Mining Ltd

Wingina Well discovery (203,000 oz gold resource).  The area, over which there has been little past exploration, is

prospective for further shear hosted gold mineralisation.

The Jilbadgie gold – nickel project covers some 35 km2 and is located within the Southern Cross greenstone belt,

approximately 2km north of the Yilgarn Star gold mine.  The application is postulated to cover some ultramafic lithologies

prospective for nickel and structures with potential to host gold mineralisation.

The Tabletop diamond project covers a conceptual target located within the Proterozoic Patterson region approximately 180

km to the south east of Telfer.  The tenement covers regional linears along which kimberlites may preferentially intrude.

Micro diamonds and indicator minerals are known to occur within the region.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

8



DIRECTORS

Your Directors present their report on the consolidated entity, consisting of Thundelarra Exploration Limited and the entity it

controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 September 2004.

The names and details of the Directors in office during or since the end of the year and to the date of this report are:

Name Qualifications, experience and Securities held in

special responsibilities Parent Company

DIRECTORS Shares Options

Philip G Crabb 16,538,489 1,325,000

(Chairman and CEO)

Frank DeMarte 1,672,478 1,250,000

(Executive Director,

Chief Financial Officer

and Company Secretary)

Brian Richardson 1,141,739 850,000

(Executive Director)
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FAusIMM, MAICD
Mr Crabb is a Fellow of the Australasian Institute of Mining and
Metallurgy and Institute of Company Directors.  Mr Crabb has
been actively engaged in mineral exploration and mining activities
for the past thirty four (34) years in both publicly listed and
private exploration companies.  He has considerable experience
in field activities, having been a drilling contractor, quarry
manager and mining contractor.  Mr Crabb also has extensive
experience with Australian publicly listed companies.  In resource
company management, he achieved notable success amongst
others as a director of Gasgoyne Gold Mines NL which was
involved in the discovery and development in 1989 of the Yilgarn
Start Gold Mine, a major gold producer in WA.  He is the
Chairman of the ASX listed United Kimberley Diamonds NL. 

Mr Crabb was appointed a director on 30 November 1998.

BBus, FCIS, MAICD
Mr DeMarte has over nineteen (19) years of experience in the
mining and exploration industry in Western Australia.  Mr
DeMarte has held executive positions with a number of listed
mining and exploration companies and is currently an Executive
Director, Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company.

Mr DeMarte is experienced in areas of secretarial practice,
management accounting and corporate and financial
management. Mr DeMarte holds a Bachelor of Business
majoring in Accounting and is a Fellow of the Chartered
Secretaries of Australia.

Mr DeMarte was appointed a director on 30 April 2001.

BSc (Hons), MAusIMM
Mr Richardson has over twenty one (21) years of experience in
the mining industry in Western Australia and the Northern
Territory.  He was Exploration Manager of Miralga Mining NL
and involved in the early exploration of Sulphur Springs base
metals – gold project.  He was also involved in the generation
of various projects for Gasgoyne Gold Mines NL.  In this role
he discovered the Southern Star Mine in 1994/95.  From
1997 through to 2000 he was the Managing Director of
Resource Exploration NL (now Mawson West Limited) an
Australian listed junior exploration company.

Mr Richardson was appointed a director on 9 October 2001.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

 



Name Qualifications, experience and Securities held in

special responsibilities Parent Company

DIRECTORS Shares Options

Rick W Crabb 1,137,390 400,000

(Non-Executive Director)

Malcolm J Randall 263,000 400,000

(Non-Executive Director)

Jeremy C Caddy 85,042 184,940

(Non - Executive Director)
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BJuris (Hons), LLB, MBA
Mr  Crabb is a former partner with the legal practice,
Blakiston & Crabb and a Director of the investment bank
Chatsworth Stirling Pty Ltd.  He holds a Bachelor of
Jurisprudence (Hons), Bachelor of Law and Master of Business
Administration from the University of Western Australia.  He
has practised as a solicitor since 1980 and was previously a
partner in a major law firm.  He specialises in mining,
corporate and commercial law.  Mr Crabb is also a director of
Port Bouvard Limited Holding Limited, Ashburton Minerals NL,
Alcaston Mining NL, ST Synergy Ltd, Thundelarra Exploration
Ltd, Chatsworth Stirling Pty Ltd and Deep Yellow Limited.

Mr Crabb was appointed a director on 9 October 2001.

B.Applied Chem
Mr Randall has had extensive experience in management and
marketing in the resource sector with the Rio Tinto group of
companies.  This has included senior technical and commercial
roles in Hamersley Iron Pty Ltd and business development
activities for Argyle Diamonds in China, Thailand and India and
establishment of Argyle’s Antwerp sales office for polished
stones.  From 1993 to 1996 he was Managing Director of
Biron Corporation following which he has undertaken
consultancy roles for Ocean Resources NL for the first
diamond Contract of Work awarded in Indonesia, consultant to
Golden Tiger Resources NL on their Vietnamese mineral
opportunities and commercial advisor to the Hope Downs Iron
Ore Project.  Mr Randall is also a non executive director of
Titan Resources NL and Consolidated Minerals Ltd. 

Mr Randall was appointed a director on 9 October 2001.

BSc, CEng, FIMM
Mr Caddy graduated as a mining engineer from the Royal
School of Mines, London and has over thirty (30) of experience
in the mining industry. Mr Caddy is a Chartered member of the
Institute of Professional Engineers (UK) and the Institution of
Mining & Metallurgy (UK). Through his personal company,
Jeremy Caddy & Associates, Mr Caddy specialises in
restructuring mining companies and locating financing for their
growth. Mr Caddy is also a director and officer of Aldershot
Resources Ltd.

Mr Caddy resigned on 14 April 2004.

 



PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the corporations in the consolidated entity during the year were mineral exploration.  Other than

the foregoing, there were no significant changes in those activities during the year.

RESULT OF OPERATIONS

The net loss, after tax, of the consolidated entity for the financial year was $2,265,808 (2003 - $1,663,149).

DIVIDENDS

No dividends were paid during the 2003/2004 year.  The Directors have not recommended a dividend for the 2003/2004

year.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS

Significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity during the financial year were as follows:-

(a) On 26 March 2004 the Company entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement with United Gold Ltd (a newly

incorporated company) and transferred all its gold properties for the consideration of 19,350,000 United Gold Ltd

shares at an issue price of 10 cents each.

On 22 April 2004 the Company completed an in specie distribution to its shareholders of 18,464,486 of its shares

in United Gold Ltd on the basis of one United Gold share for every four shares held in the Company at an issue price

of 10 cents each, resulting in a $1,846,449 return of capital to shareholders.

During the period August 2004 to October 2004, the Board attempted to list United Gold Ltd on the Australian

Stock Exchange and to raise $4,000,000 by way of a prospectus, but was unsuccessful.

At 30 September 2004 the Company holds 885,515 fully paid ordinary shares in United Gold Ltd, representing

3.70% of the ordinary shares.

(b) On 29 September 2004 the Company entered into a conditional Sale Agreement with United Kimberley Diamonds

NL, whereby UKD would purchase the Company’s joint venture interest in the Phillips Range JV.

In consideration for the purchase of the Company’s joint venture interest in the Phillips Range JV Agreement, UKD

will issue to the Company 20,000,000 ordinary fully paid shares and 5,000,000 options over shares with an

exercise price of 20 cents each.

Except for the above, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity during the year.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS

In the opinion of the Directors, the operations of the parent entity for the financial year, likely developments in the operations

of the consolidated entity and the expected results of those operations known at the date of this report have been covered

generally in the Review of Operations, which is set out elsewhere in the Annual Report.  The consolidated entity's future

profitability may be affected by unforeseen factors, such as movements in the metal prices and exchange rates, government

actions and policies, native title constraints and the resumption or otherwise of income-producing operations.

The Company will continue to actively explore for minerals, and any significant information or data will be released in the

market and to shareholders pursuant to the Continuous Disclosure rules as and when they are to hand.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES AND REGULATIONS

The consolidated entity has interests in mining tenements (including prospecting, exploration and mining leases).  The leases

and licence conditions contain environmental obligations.  To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, the consolidated

entity has not contravened any environmental obligations and no claims have been made of any breaches.
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POST BALANCE DATE EVENTS

Other than as mentioned in Note 24 to the accounts, circumstances have not arisen since the end of the financial year that

have affected or may significantly affect in subsequent financial years:

(i) the operations of the consolidated entity;

(ii) the result of those operations; or

(iii) the state of affairs of the consolidated entity.

The likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity in subsequent financial years are that the consolidated

entity will continue to explore its Western Australian mineral tenement areas of interest, and to utilise its cash reserves and

expertise to add value to exploration activities.

DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES REMUNERATION

Disclosure relating to Directors’ and Executive Officers’ emoluments has been included in Note 17 to the financial

statements.

OPTIONS GRANTED TO DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

During or since the end of the financial year, the Company granted options for no consideration over its unissued ordinary

shares to the following directors as part of their remuneration.

Directors Number of Options Granted Exercise Price Expiry Date

P G Crabb 500,000 67.5 cents 26 February 2009

F DeMarte 350,000 67.5 cents 26 February 2009

B Richardson 350,000 67.5 cents 26 February 2009

R W Crabb 150,000 67.5 cents 26 February 2009

M J Randall 150,000 67.5 cents 26 February 2009

J C Caddy 150,000 67.5 cents 26 February 2009

The consolidated entity does not have any executives other than executive directors.

All options were granted during the financial year.  No options have been granted since the end of the financial year.

All options expire on the earlier of their expiry date or termination of the employee’s employment.

UNISSUED SHARES UNDER OPTION

At the date of this report unissued ordinary shares of the Company under option are:

Expiry date Exercise price Number of shares

30 April 2005 20.5 cents 3,041,644

28 February 2007 47.5 cents 1,771,000

20 November 2007 65.5 cents 11,000,000

28 March 2008 32.5 cents 1,245,000

20 April 2009 47.5 cents 375,000

26 February 2009 67.5 cents 1,970,000

These options do not entitle the holder to participate in any share issue of the Company or any other body corporate.
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SHARES ISSUED ON EXERCISE OF OPTIONS

During or since the end of the financial year, the Company issued ordinary shares as a result of the exercise of options as

follows (there were no amounts unpaid on the shares issued).

Number of Shares Amount paid on each share

491,000 20.5 cents

705,000 32.5 cents

MEETING OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year, 7 meeting of directors were held.  Attendees were:

Directors: Directors Meetings

Number eligible to attend Number attended

P G Crabb 7 7

F DeMarte 7 7

B Richardson 7 7

R W Crabb 7 5

M J Randall 7 7

J C Caddy * 7 1

* Mr Caddy resigned as a director on 14 April 2004.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF COMPANY

No person has applied for leave of court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any proceedings to

which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those

proceedings.  The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

During the financial year, Thundelarra Exploration Limited paid a premium of $18,004 to insure the Directors of the

Company and its controlled entity.  The liabilities insured are costs and expenses that may be incurred in defending civil or

criminal proceedings that may be brought against the Directors and officers in their capacity as officers of entities in the

consolidated entity.

Dated at Perth this 20th of December 2004.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Directors.

Phillip G Crabb

DIRECTOR
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INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors of Thundelarra Exploration Ltd is responsible for the corporate governance of the consolidated entity.

The Board guides and monitors the business of Thundelarra on behalf of shareholders, by whom they are elected and to

whom they are accountable.  The Board is responsible for setting corporate direction, defining policies and monitoring the

business of the Company, to ensure it is conducted appropriately and in the best interests of shareholders.

Thundelarra has adopted systems of control and accountability as the basis for the administration of Corporate Governance.

Some of these policies and procedures are summarised below.

The following additional information about the Company's Corporate Governance practices is set out on the Company's

website at www.thundelarra.com:

• Corporate Governance disclosures and explanations;

• Statement of Board and Management Functions;

• Nomination Committee Charter;

• Policy and Procedure for Selection and Appointment of New Directors;

• Summary of Code of Conduct for Company Executives;

• Summary of Policy for Trading in Company Securities;

• Audit Committee Charter;

• Procedure for the Selection, Appointment and Rotation of External Auditor;

• Summary of Compliance Procedures for ASX Listing Rule Disclosure Requirements;

• Shareholder Communication Strategy;

• Company's Risk Management Policy and Internal Compliance and Control System;

• Statement of process for performance evaluation of the Board, Board committees, individual directors and key executives;

• Remuneration Committee Charter; and

• Corporate Code of Conduct.

EXPLANATIONS FOR DEPARTURES FROM BEST PRACTICE

RECOMMENDATIONS

During the Company's 2003/2004 financial year ("Reporting Period"), the Company has complied with each of the Ten

Essential Corporate Governance Principles  and the corresponding Best Practice Recommendations  as published by the ASX

Corporate Governance Council ("ASX Principles and Recommendations"), other than in relation to the matters specified below.

Principle Recommendation Notification of Explanation for
Ref Ref Departure Departure

1 1.1A

1 1.1B
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Formalisation and disclosure of the
functions reserved to the Board
and those delegated to
management occurred on 10
December 2004.

Formal letters of appointment were
put in place on 10 December 2004. 

As from 10 December 2004 the
Company achieved compliance.
Prior to this time the functions
were delegated as now disclosed
but without formalisation and
disclosure.

Prior to 10 December 2004
directors’ appointments were made
in accordance with requirements at
the time of their appointment.  The
requirement for appointment
letters is new and the Company is
now in compliance.



Principle Recommendation Notification of Explanation for
Ref Ref Departure Departure

2 2.1

2 2.2, 2.3

2 2.4
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The Board considers two out of five
directors to be independent (Rick
Crabb and Malcolm Randall), as
discussed. 

The chairman (Philip Crabb) is the
managing director of the Company.

A separate nomination committee has
not been formed.  However the
Company adopted the Nomination
Committee Charter on 10 December
2004.

The Board considers that its current
structure is appropriate to efficiently
and independently carry out its
functions, given the size and level of its
current activities. Its independent
directors form the audit committee
and the remuneration committee. The
Board notes that it was deliberately
structured to include a number of
executive directors as this was
considered the most appropriate
board and management structure to
facilitate the transition of the Company
from a Canadian company to an
Australian registered and ASX listed
Company in 2000.  The Board
acknowledges the need for sufficient
representation of independence on the
Board, and will continue to monitor
and critically assess whether this
requirement is met, and accordingly,
whether a restructure is required.

The Board considers that to date, the
dual role of Mr P Crabb as chairman
and CEO has been in the best
interests of the Company due to Mr
Crabb's industry experience and
specific knowledge of the Company's
operations.  Furthermore, the carrying
out of both roles by Mr Crabb is in line
with expectations of current investors
and key to the attraction of future
investors.  The Board is mindful of the
recommendation that roles of
chairman and CEO be carried out by
different people and takes best
practice in corporate governance
seriously.  Accordingly, the Board
intends to reconsider the duality of Mr
Crabb's role and restructure
accordingly if considered appropriate
in the future.

The role of the nomination committee
is carried out by the full Board in
accordance with the Nomination
Committee Charter.  The Board
considers that at this stage, no
efficiencies or other benefits would be
gained by establishing a separate
nomination committee.  Prior to 10
December 2004, the full Board
reviewed and considered the selection
and appointment of directors on an as
required basis.



Principle Recommendation Notification of Explanation for
Ref Ref Departure Departure

3 3.1

3 3.2

4 4.2, 4.3, 4.4

5 5.1

6 6.1
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A Code of Conduct was formalised and
adopted by the Company on 10
December 2004.

The Company adopted a written
securities trading policy on 10
December 2004.

There was no Audit Committee during
the Reporting Period.  An Audit
Committee was formed on 10
December 2004 and will carry out its
functions in accordance with an Audit
Committee Charter.  The Audit
Committee does not meet the
recommendation for composition as it
is comprised of 2 members.

Until 10 December 2004 there were
no written policies and procedures
designed to ensure compliance with
ASX Listing Rule disclosure
requirements and accountability for
the compliance.

The Company’s shareholder
communication strategy was designed
and disclosed in a formal way on 10
December 2004.

Prior to 10 December 2004 the
Board considers that its business
practices, as led by the example of
Board and key executives, were the
equivalent of a code of conduct.  These
practices are now reflected in the
Code of Conduct adopted by the
Company on 10 December 2004.

Although prior to 10 December 2004
there was no written policy, there was
an understanding as to when it was
appropriate for trading in securities to
occur.  This understanding has been
formulated into the Company’s written
securities trading policy.

To date, the Company’s financial
statements have been prepared by the
company secretary and reviewed in
detail by the full Board.  The Board
only approves the financial statements
if it is satisfied with its review. The
Board also relies on the functions and
capabilities of its external auditors to
ensure proper audit of financial
statements.  An Audit Committee has
now been formally constituted,
comprising the two independent
members of the Board, Mr R Crabb
and Mr Randall.  As the other three
members of the Board are executive,
the Board did not consider it
appropriate for those directors to be
members of the audit committee.

Informal procedures were in place
prior to 10 December 2004 which
have been formulated into the written
policies and procedures.

The Company has a positive strategy
to communicate with shareholders,
identify the expectations of
shareholders and actively promote
shareholder involvement in the
Company.  These strategies have now
been documented and disclosed on 10
December 2004.

 



Principle Recommendation Notification of Explanation for
Ref Ref Departure Departure

7 7.1

8 8.1

9 9.1

9 9.2

SKILLS, EXPERIENCE, EXPERTISE AND TERM OF OFFICE OF EACH DIRECTOR

A profile of each director containing the applicable information is set out in the Directors' Report. 

IDENTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The independent directors of the Company are Malcolm Randall and Rick Crabb.

Mr Randall is an independent director in accordance with Box 2.1 the of commentary that supplements the Principles of

Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations as published by the ASX Corporate Governance Council

("Independence Criteria").

Until 1 July 2004, Mr R Crabb was a principal of the law firm Blakiston & Crabb.  Blakiston & Crabb are the main provider

of legal services to the Company in respect of matters concerning Australian law.  The Company pays legal fees on a normal

commercial basis to Blakiston & Crabb.

As a result of Mr R Crabb being a principal of Blakiston & Crabb during the Reporting Period, he does not fit within paragraph

3 of the Independence Criteria.  In addition, Mr R Crabb is the brother of Phil Crabb, the Chairman and CEO of the Company.

The Board acknowledges that this could be perceived to interfere with Mr R Crabb's ability to exercise independent judgement.

Notwithstanding the relationships described above, the Board (in the absence of Mr R Crabb) considers that he consistently

makes decisions and takes actions which are designed to be in the best interests of the Company, and is capable of continuing

to do so.  The Board notes that, in any event, the fees paid to Blakiston & Crabb during the period when Mr Crabb was a

principal are not material to the Company and are not of a high enough level to be material to Mr R Crabb's practice or the

firm Blakiston & Crabb.  Therefore the Board considers Mr R Crabb to be independent.
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The Company did not have a formal
risk oversight and management policy
and internal compliance and control
system until 10 December 2004.

The process for performance
evaluation of the Board, its
committees and individual directors,
and key executives was not disclosed
until 10 December 2004.

The Company's remuneration policy
was not disclosed until 10 December
2004.

There was no separate remuneration
committee during the Reporting
Period.  A Remuneration Committee
was established on 10 December
2004.

The Company has developed a
framework for risk management, which
the Company intends to enhance as
the Company moves closer to
commencing mining operations.

The process was not disclosed, but did
occur by way of an informal review by
the chairman.

Although the policy was not disclosed,
it did exist and was applied during the
Reporting Period.  The Board notes
that due to the Company's size and its
status as a junior explorer, a detailed
policy is not warranted.

Due to the small size and structure of
the Board, a separate remuneration
committee was not considered to add
any efficiency to the process of
determining the levels of remuneration
for the directors and key executives.
The Board has now formally established
a Remuneration Committee.

 



STATEMENT CONCERNING AVAILABILITY OF INDEPENDENT

PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

If a director considers it necessary to obtain independent professional advice to properly discharge the responsibility of

his/her office as a director, then, provided the director first obtains approval for incurring such expense from the

chairperson, the Company will pay the reasonable expenses associated with obtaining such advice.

NAMES OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND THEIR

ATTENDANCE AT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The full Board carries out the function of the nomination committee.  The Board did not meet formally as the nomination

committee during the Reporting Period, however any relevant matters were discussed on an as-required basis from time to

time during regular meetings of the Board.

NAMES AND QUALIFICATIONS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Rick Crabb and Malcolm Randall are members of the Audit Committee.  Mr Randall is the chairman of the committee.

Both Mr Crabb and Mr Randall are qualified to be members of the Audit Committee by virtue of their respective commercial

and industry experience, as detailed in the Directors' Report.  Neither Mr Crabb nor Mr Randall possess specific "financial

expertise", however the Board is of the view that the composition of the Audit Committee is satisfactory to ensure the integrity

of the financial accounts.  In addition, Mr DeMarte, who is primarily responsible for preparing the Company's accounts, is

available to attend Audit Committee meetings by invitation and answer any queries the Audit Committee may have.

NUMBER OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND NAMES OF ATTENDEES

During the Reporting Period the full Board carried out the functions of the Audit Committee.  The Board met as the Audit

Committee twice during the Reporting Period.

CONFIRMATION WHETHER PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD

AND ITS MEMBERS HAVE TAKEN PLACE AND HOW CONDUCTED

During the Reporting Period the composition and functioning of the Board as a whole was discussed from time to time at

regular meetings of the Board.  From the commencement of the Company's 2004/2005 financial year, the Chairman will

conduct and annual review of individual directors and key executives.  The Board considers that a more formal procedure is

not warranted at present in view of the small size, and overlap of many of the key functions, of the Board and management.

COMPANY’S REMUNERATION POLICIES

Key executives receive a remuneration package which includes a salary, superannuation, in some instances other benefits such

as motor vehicles.  More detailed information is set out in the Directors' Report under “Directors’ and Senior Executives’

Remuneration.  Remuneration levels for executives are competitively set to attract the most qualified and experienced senior

executive officers, in the context of prevailing market conditions.  The assistance of an external consultant or remuneration

surveys is used where necessary.  The executive directors do not receive a separate fee for their services as directors.

The non-executive directors receive a fixed fee for their services.

All of the directors, both executive and non-executive, have received a one-off issue of incentive options, the exercise of which

is linked to the Company's share prices.  At the time of issuing the options, the exercise price of the options was set at

approximately 50% above the market price of the Company's shares.  For a junior explorer, the Board is of the view that

the issue of incentive options on these terms is an appropriate reward for both non-executive and executive directors alike.

NAMES OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND THEIR

ATTENDANCE AT COMMITTEE MEETINGS.

From the commencement of the Company's 2004/2005 financial year, Rick Crabb, Malcolm Randall and Brian Richardson

comprise the Remuneration Committee.  During the Reporting Period, the full Board carried out the function of the remuneration

committee.  The Board did not meet formally as the remuneration committee during the Reporting Period, however any relevant

matters were discussed on an as-required basis from time to time during regular meetings of the Board.

EXISTENCE AND TERMS OF ANY SCHEMES FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS

FOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are no retirement benefits for non-executive directors.
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NOTE CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003 2004 2003
$ $ $ $

REVENUES FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 2 2,261,816 103,821 2,261,816 103,821

EXPENSES FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Administrative costs (8,017) (5,094 (8,017) (5,094)

Depreciation (66,469) (49,987) (66,469) (49,987)

Office and miscellaneous (317,089) (217,776) (317,089) (217,776)

Professional fees (146,791) (226,299) (146,791) (226,299)

Regulatory and trust company fees (86,629) (60,911) (86,629) (60,911)

Shareholder and investor relations (52,008) (64,448) (52,008) (64,448)

Travelling expenses (59,397) (69,727) (59,397) (69,727)

Employee benefits expense (588,179) (407,916) (588,179) (407,916)

Exploration expenditures written off (343,748) (628,449) (343,748) (628,449)

Costs of tenements sold (2,807,432) - (2,807,432) -

Foreign exchange loss (1,446) (4,653) (1,446) (4,653)

Other operating expenses (50,419) (31,710) (50,419) (34,033)

LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 3 (2,265,808) (1,663,149) (2,265,808) (1,665,472)

Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities 4 - - - -

LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
AFTER INCOME TAX EXPENSE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO MEMBERS OF THUNDELARRA
EXPLORATION LIMITED (2,265,808) (1,663,149) (2,265,808) (1,665,472)

TOTAL CHANGES IN EQUITY OTHER THAN
THOSE RESULTING FROM TRANSACTIONS
WITH OWNERS AS OWNERS 15 (2,265,808) (1,663,149) (2,265,808) (1,665,472)

Basic earnings per share 21 (3.21) (3.46) (3.21) (3.47)
(cents per share)

Notes to and forming part of the Statements of Financial Performance are attached.
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NOTE CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003 2004 2003
$ $ $ $

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash assets 5 (b) 5,056,269 2,107,106 5,056,269 2,107,106

Receivables 6 37,545 30,988 37,545 30,988

Other assets 7 3,622 - 3,622 -

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 5,097,436 2,138,094 5,097,436 2,138,094

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Receivables 8 316,034 130,000 316,034 130,000

Other financial assets 9 238,231 - 238,231 -

Plant, equipment, and vehicles 10 365,517 155,700 365,517 155,700

Exploration and evaluation expenditure 11 5,556,690 6,973,567 5,556,690 6,973,567

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 6,476,472 7,259,267 6,476,472 7,259,267

TOTAL ASSETS 11,573,908 9,397,361 11,573,908 9,397,361

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables 12 94,610 221,790 94,610 221,790

Provisions 13 66,333 39,166 66,333 39,166

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 160,943 260,956 160,943 260,956

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Provisions 13 22,197 15,441 22,197 15,441

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 22,197 15,441 22,197 15,441

TOTAL LIABILITIES 183,140 276,397 183,140 276,397

NET ASSETS 11,390,768 9,120,964 11,390,768 9,120,964

EQUITY

Parent entity interest
Contributed equity 14 22,842,673 18,307,061 22,842,673 18,307,061

Accumulated losses 15 (11,451,905) (9,186,097) (11,451,905) (9,186,097)

Equity attributable to members of
Thundelarra Exploration Limited 11,390,768 9,120,964 11,390,768 9,120,964

TOTAL EQUITY 11,390,768 9,120,964 11,390,768 9,120,964

Notes to and forming part of the Statements of Financial Position are attached.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2004

NOTE CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003 2004 2003
$ $ $ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Other revenue received 19,775 68,469 19,775 68,469

Payment to suppliers and employees (1,313,586) 965,575) (1,313,586) (965,214)

Interest received 259,041 21,760 259,041 21,760

Net cash outflow from operating activities 5(a) (1,034,770) (875,346) (1,034,770) (874,985)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for investments (150,280) - (150,280) -

Net payments on liquidation of subsidiary - (4,220) - (4,220)

Payments for plant, equipment and vehicles (288,523) (55,114) (288,523) (55,114)

Proceeds from sale of plant, equipment and vehicles 8,000 17,822 8,000 17,822

Placement of security deposits (29,769) (80,000) (29,769) (80,000)

Exploration and evaluation expenditure (1,311,280) (968,112) (1,311,280) (968,112)

Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,771,852) (1,089,624) (1,771,852) (1,089,624)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net proceeds from issue of shares 6,007,061 3,365,876 6,007,061 3,365,876

Net payments made in financing director-related entities (178,276) - (178,276) -

Loans (repaid)/provided by director-related entities (73,000) 73,000 (73,000) 73,000

Net cash inflow from financing activities 5,755,785 3,438,876 5,755,785 3,438,876

NET INCREASE IN CASH HELD 2,949,163 1,473,906 2,949,163 1,474,267

Cash at the beginning of the financial year 2,107,106 633,200 2,107,106 632,839

CASH AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 5(b) 5,056,269 2,107,106 5,056,269 2,107,106

Notes to and forming part of the Statements of Cash Flows are attached.
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1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

The general purpose financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis, on the accruals basis and in

accordance with the historical cost convention.  The financial report has been prepared in accordance with the

provisions of the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views

and other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia. 

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all entities controlled by Thundelarra

Exploration Limited ("parent entity") at each financial year end and the results of all controlled entities for the year

then ended.  Thundelarra Exploration Limited and its controlled entities together are referred to in this financial

report as the consolidated entity.  The effects of all transactions between entities in the consolidated entity are

eliminated in full.  Where applicable, outside equity interests in the results and equity of controlled entities are shown

separately in the consolidated Statement of Financial Performance and Statement of Financial Position respectively. 

Where control of an entity is obtained during a financial year, its results are included in the consolidated Statement

of Financial Performance from the date on which control commences.  Where control of an entity ceases during a

financial year its results are included for that part of the year during which control existed.

In the prior financial year, the controlled entity of the Company ceased its operations and was liquidated.  No

controlled entities are held by the Company at 30 September 2004 nor have been held at any time during the

current financial year.  As such, the consolidated financial information shown in the financial statements for

2003/2004 represents the financial information for the parent entity (i.e. the Company).

Income tax

The consolidated entity follows the policy of tax effect accounting.  Under this method the income tax expense for the

year is related to operating profit before tax after allowing for permanently non-allowable and non-assessable items.

The future tax benefit relating to tax losses is not carried forward as an asset unless the benefit can be regarded

as being virtually certain of realisation.  Income tax on cumulative timing differences is set aside to the deferred

income tax or future income tax benefit accounts at the rates which are expected to apply when those timing

differences reverse.

The eventual payment of the liability and recoverability of the asset are contingent upon the future profitability of the

particular company's operations, continued compliance with the conditions for deductibility imposed by the law and

the taxation law itself not changing in a manner which would adversely affect asset recoverability or which would

extinguish the liability.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the

amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority.  In these circumstances, the GST is

recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the

Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis.  The GST components of cash flows arising

from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating

cash flows.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2004

22



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2004

Plant, equipment and vehicles

The cost of each item of plant, equipment and vehicles is written off over its expected economic life.  Each item's

economic life has due regard both to its own physical life limitations and to present assessments of economically

recoverable resources of the mine property at which the item is located, and to possible future variations in those

assessments.  Estimates of remaining useful lives are made on a regular basis for all assets, with annual

reassessments for major items.

The total net carrying values of plant, equipment and vehicles at each mine property are reviewed regularly and, to

the extent to which these values exceed their recoverable amounts, that excess is fully provided against in the

financial year in which this is determined.

The expected useful lives are as follows:

Site Camp 7.5% - 30%

Plant and equipment 15% - 50%

Office furniture and equipment 20% - 40%

Vehicles 22.5% - 30%

Mine properties

Mine properties represent the accumulation of all exploration, evaluation, and development expenditure incurred by

or on behalf of the entity in relation to areas of interest in which mining of a mineral resource has commenced.

When further development expenditure is incurred in respect of a mine property after the commencement of

production, such expenditure is carried forward as part of the cost of that mine property only when substantial

future economic benefits are thereby established, otherwise such expenditure is classified as part of the cost of

production.

Amortisation of costs are provided on the unit-of-production method, separate calculations being made where

appropriate for each mineral resource.  The unit-of-production basis results in an amortisation charge proportional

to the depletion of the economically recoverable mineral resources (comprising both measured and indicated mineral

resources). 

The net carrying value of each mine property is reviewed regularly and, to the extent to which this value exceeds its

recoverable amount that excess is fully provided against in the financial year in which this is determined.

Pre-stripping costs (included under mine properties) are amortised over the estimated ore tonnages from the date

of commencement of commercial production.

Royalties and other mining imposts

Ad valorem royalties and other mining imposts are accrued and charged against earnings when the liability from

production or sale of the mineral crystallises.  Profit-based royalties are accrued on a basis which matches the

annual royalty expense with the profits on which the royalties are assessed (after allowing for permanent

differences). 

Valuation of inventories

Raw materials, stores and gold stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost is determined

on an average basis and comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and

fixed overhead expenditure. 
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Employee benefits

(i) Wages and salaries, annual leave and leave-in-lieu

Liabilities for wages and salaries, annual leave and leave-in-lieu are recognised in respect of employees’ services

up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

No liabilities are provided for non-vested sick leave.

(ii) Long Service Leave

A liability for long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date is recognised in

the provision for employee entitlements and is measured in accordance with the above.  The liability for  long

service leave expected to be settled more than 12 months from the reporting date is recognised in the provision

for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of

services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

(iii) Equity-based or compensated benefits

Equity-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the Employee Share Incentive Option Plan.

Information relating to the Plan is set out in Note 23.

No accounting entries are made in relation to the employee option plan until options are exercised, at which time

the amounts receivable from employees are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as share capital. 

Exploration, development and joint venture expenditure

Exploration, development and joint venture expenditure carried forward represents an accumulation of net costs

incurred in relation to separate areas of interest for which rights of tenure are current and in respect of which: 

(i) such costs are expected to be recouped through successful development and exploitation of the area, or 

alternatively by its sale, or

(ii) exploration and/or evaluation activities in the area have not yet reached a stage which permits a reasonable 

assessment of the existence or otherwise of economically recoverable reserves, and active and significant 

operations in, or in relation to the areas are continuing. 

Accumulated costs in respect of areas of interest, which are abandoned are written off in the Statement of Financial

Performance in the year in which the area is abandoned. 

The net carrying value of each property is reviewed regularly and, to the extent to which this value exceeds its

recoverable amount, that excess is fully provided against in the financial year in which this is determined. 

Comparative figures

Where appropriate, prior year figures have been re-classified to correspond with current year figures.  

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the period are converted to Australian currency at the rates of exchange

applicable at the dates of the transactions.  Amounts receivable and payable in foreign currencies at balance date

are converted at the rates of exchange ruling at year end. 

The gains and losses from these conversions of short and long term balances, whether realised or unrealised, are

included in operating results.  The assets and liabilities of any overseas controlled entity are translated at year-end

rates, and operating results are translated at the rates of exchange applicable at the dates of the transaction.

Profits and losses arising on translation are written off to the Statement of Financial Performance. 

Cash

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes deposits at call which are readily convertible to cash on

hand and which are used in the cash management function on a day-to-day basis, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2004

Joint Ventures

Unincorporated

The consolidated entity's interest in joint ventures is brought to account by including in their respective categories

the amount of:

(i) the share of the individual assets employed in the joint ventures;

(ii) liabilities incurred in relation to the joint ventures including the share of liabilities for which the consolidated 

entity is jointly and/or severally liable; and

(iii) the share of expenses incurred in relation to the joint ventures.

Incorporated

(i) the investment in the share capital of the joint venture company; and

(ii) the amount of the carrying value of receivables and/or amounts owing from/to the joint venture company.

Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental expenditure

Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental expenditure to be incurred during the production phase of operations is

accrued when the need for such expenditure is established, and then written off as part of the cost of production of

the mine property concerned.  Significant restoration, rehabilitation and environmental expenditure to be incurred

subsequent to the cessation of production at each mine property is accrued, in proportion to production, when its

extent can be reasonably estimated.

Restoration, rehabilitation, and environmental obligations recognised include the costs of reclamation, plant and

waste site closure and subsequent monitoring of the environment.  Costs are estimated on the basis of current

undiscounted costs, current legal requirements and current technology.  Estimated costs are reassessed annually.

Changes in estimates of costs relating to producing areas are dealt with prospectively over the remaining mine life. 

Investments

Controlled entities

Investments in controlled entities are carried in the Company’s financial statements at the lower of cost and

recoverable amount.

Associates

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in unlisted shares of associates are carried at the lower of cost

and recoverable amount.

Investments in listed shares in associates are measured the lower of cost and market value.

Other entities

Investments in other listed entities are measured at the lower of cost and market value.

Investments in other unlisted entities are carried at the lower of cost and recoverable amount.

Maintenance and repairs

Maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals are charged as expenses as incurred.

Receivables

Amounts receivables are carried at amounts due.  The recoverability of the debts are assessed at balance date and

specific provision is made for any doubtful accounts.

Accounts payable

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether or not billed to

the Company.
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CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003 2004 2003
$ $ $ $

2. REVENUES FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Operating activities

Interest received 259,041 21,760 259,041 21,760

Considerations of tenements sold 1,975,000 - 1,975,000 -

Other revenues 19,775 64,239 19,775 64,239

2,253,816 85,999 2,253,816 85,999

Non-operating activities

Proceeds on disposal of plant, equipment and vehicles 8,000 17,822 8,000 17,822

Total revenues from ordinary activities 2,261,816 103,821 2,261,816 103,821

3. LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES IS AFTER THE FOLLOWING:

Loss on disposal of tenements

Consideration for disposal of tenements (1,975,000) - (1,975,000) -

Carrying amounts of tenements sold 2,807,432 - 2,807,432 -

Net loss 832,432 - 832,432 -

Depreciation of plant, equipment and vehicles 66,469 49,987 66,469 49,987

Loss on disposal of plant, equipment and vehicles

Proceeds from disposal of plant, equipment and vehicles (8,000) (17,822) (8,000) (17,822)

Carrying amounts of plant, equipment and vehicles sold 12,237 22,212 12,237 22,212

Net loss 4,237 4,390 4,237 4,390

Exploration expenditure written-off or provided for 343,748 628,449 343,748 628,449

Amounts set aside to provisions for employee entitlements 33,923 33,425 33,923 33,42

Provision for write down of investments 600 - 600 -

Bad debt written off - 2,094 - 2,094

Loss on liquidation of subsidiary - 3,292 - 6,214

Foreign exchange losses 1,446 4,653 1,446 4,653
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2004

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003 2004 2003
$ $ $ $

4. INCOME TAX

The aggregate amount of income tax attributable to the 
financial year differs from the amount calculated on the 
operating loss.The difference is reconciled as follows:

Operating loss before income tax (2,265,808) (1,663,149) (2,265,808) (1,665,472)

Income tax calculated at 30% (679,742) (498,945) (679,742) (499,642)

Tax effect of permanent differences:

Tax benefit of Canadian losses not likely to be recoverable - 43,808 - 43,808

Loss on liquidation of subsidiary - 988 - 1,864

Capital raising costs incurred - (8,820) - (8,820)

Result of subsidiary not subject to tax - 179 - -

Other permanent items 16,427 - 16,427 -

Income tax adjusted for permanent differences (663,315) (462,790) (663,315) (462,790)

Tax effect of:

Costs of tenements sold 842,230 - 842,230 -

Exploration expenditure incurred and written off 103,124 188,535 103,124 188,535

Exploration costs incurred (520,291) (290,434) (520,291) (290,434)

Other timing differences (113,674) 10,028 (113,674) 10,028

Estimated future income tax benefit in respect of
tax losses not brought to account 351,926 554,661 351,926 554,661

- - - -

Future income tax benefit not taken into account

The directors estimate that the potential future income
tax benefit in respect of tax losses not brought to
account at an income tax rate of 30% is 2,306,938 1,955,012 2,306,938 1,955,012

The potential future income tax benefit arising from tax losses have not been recognised as an asset because recovery of tax losses is
not virtually certain:

The potential future income tax benefit will be obtainable by the company only if:

(a) the company derives future assessable income of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit of the deductions for the
loss to be realised;

(b) the company continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by income tax law; and

(c) no changes in income tax legislation adversely affects the company in realising the benefit of the deduction for the loss.

The estimated potential future income tax benefits on tax losses have not taken account of the tax losses incurred on the Canadian
division, which is governed under separate tax legislation regime.  It is of the Directors’ opinion that the likelihood of its recoverability is
highly unlikely with due regards to the management’s decision to focusing its exploration, evaluation and development of mines and
tenements in Australia.
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CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003 2004 2003
$ $ $ $

5. RECONCILIATION OF CASH

(a) Reconciliation of net cash provided by operating activities to
operating loss after income tax  

Operating loss after income tax (2,265,808) (1,663,149) (2,265,808) (1,665,472)

Non cash flows in operating loss

Capitalised exploration expenditure written-off or provided for 343,748 628,449 343,748 628,449

Depreciation 66,469 49,987 66,469 49,987

Provision for employee entitlements 33,923 33,425 33,923 33,425

Loss on liquidation of a subsidiary - 3,292 - 6,214

Net loss on sale of tenements 832,432 - 832,432 -

Provision for write down of investments 600 - 600 -

Loss on sale of plant, equipment and vehicles 4,237 4,390 4,237 4,390

Change in assets and liabilities net of effect of disposal of subsidiary

Decrease/increase in payables and accruals (62,205) 64,030 (62,205) 63,792

Decrease in receivables 15,456 4,230 15,456 4,230

Increase in prepayments (3,622) - (3,622) -

Net cash outflow from operating activities (1,034,770) (875,346) (1,034,770) (874,985)

(b) Cash represents:

Cash on hand 33 8 33 8

Cash at bank 23,385 2,003,228 23,385 2,003,228

Cash on deposit 5,070,722 103,870 5,070,722 103,870

Overdrawn bank account (37,871) - (37,871) -

5,056,269 2,107,106 5,056,269 2,107,106

(c) Non cash financing and investing activities

(i) 750,000 ordinary shares were issued at 50 cents each and 375,000 options exercisable at 47.5 cents each on or before 20 April 
2009 to acquire Wader Tent Project;

(ii) 19,350,000 ordinary shares of United Gold Ltd were issued to the Company as the consideration in respect to the sale of the 
Company’s gold tenement projects to United Gold Ltd;

(iii) The Company subsequently made an in specie distribution of 18,464,486 ordinary shares of United Gold Ltd at 10 cents each to the
Company’s shareholders;

(iv) The Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Gindalbie Gold NL to exchange its tenements at Monti Cristo with 
tenements at Ord River.  In the opinion of directors, the newly acquired tenements are at fair value and amount to $40,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2004

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003 2004 2003
$ $ $ $

6. RECEIVABLES (CURRENT)

Trade receivables - 19,650 - 19,650

Other receivables 13,180 8,984 13,180 8,984

Amounts receivable from directors and director related entities 24,365 2,354 24,365 2,354

37,545 30,988 37,545 30,988

The amounts receivable from directors and director
related entities are unsecured, interest free and have
no fixed terms of repayment.

7. OTHER ASSETS (CURRENT)

Prepayments 3,622 - 3,622 -

8. RECEIVABLES (NON-CURRENT)

Security deposits/bonds 159,769 130,000 159,769 130,000

Loan provided to a director related entity 156,265 - 156,265 -

316,034 130,000 316,034 130,000

The loan provided to a director related entity, namely United Gold Ltd,
is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment. 
The Company has agreed to provide the necessary working capital to 
United Gold Ltd until such time as United Gold Ltd secures its own funds.

NOTE CONSOLIDATED & PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003
$ $

9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON-CURRENT)

Investment in controlled entity
Unlisted shares at cost
Magmatic Metals Limited (a) - -

Investments in director-related entities

Listed shares at cost
Aldershot Resources Limited
(a Canadian incorporated entity) 65,280 -

Unlisted shares at cost
United Gold Ltd (b) 88,551 -
United Kimberley Diamonds NL (c) 81,000 -

234,831 -

Investments in other entities

Listed shares at cost 4,000 -
Less provision for write down (600) -

3,400 -

Total other financial assets 238,231 -

Market value for listed shares
Investments in director-related entities 83,187 -
Investments in other entities 3,400 -

86,587 -
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(a) The Company previously owned 100% of the shares in Magmatic Metals Ltd, a company incorporated in Australia.

Magnetic Metals Ltd was subsequently deregistered on 26 August 2003 under section 601AA (4) of the

Corporations Act 2001 and the cost of investment and expenses incurred in the deregistration process amounting

to $6,214 were written off.  The subsidiary was deconsolidated with effect from 26 August 2003 resulting in a net

loss of $3,292 in the consolidated statement of financial performance for the year ended 30 September 2003.

(b) On 26 March 2004, the Company entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement with United Gold Ltd (a newly

incorporated company) and transferred all its gold properties for the consideration of 19,350,000 United Gold Ltd

shares at an issue price of 10 cents each.

On 22 April 2004 the Company completed an in specie distribution to its shareholders of 18,464,486 of its shares

in United Gold Ltd on the basis of one United Gold Ltd share for every four shares held in the Company at an issue

price of 10 cents each, resulting in a $1,846,449 return of capital to shareholders.

During the period August 2004 to October 2004, the Board attempted to list United Gold Ltd on the Australian

Stock Exchange and to raise $4,000,000 by way of a prospectus, but was unsuccessful.

At 30 September 2004 the Company holds 885,515 fully paid ordinary shares in United Gold Ltd, representing

3.70% of the ordinary shares.

(c) On 29 September 2004 the Company entered into a conditional Sale Agreement with United Kimberley Diamonds

NL (“UKD”), whereby UKD would purchase the Company’s joint venture interest in the Phillips Range JV.

In consideration for the purchase of the Company’s joint venture interest in the Phillips Range JV Agreement, UKD

will issue to the Company 20,000,000 ordinary fully paid shares and 5,000,000 options over shares with an

exercise price of 20 cents each. 

CONSOLIDATED & PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003
$ $

10. PLANT, EQUIPMENT, AND VEHICLES

Plant and equipment

At cost 53,490 24,177
Less: Accumulated depreciation (15,729) (9,002)

37,761 15,175

Office equipment

At cost 106,778 62,802
Less: Accumulated depreciation (52,939) (35,677)

53,839 27,125

Motor vehicles

At cost 256,573 172,021
Less: Accumulated depreciation (86,584) (58,621)

169,989 113,400

Site camp

At cost 107,749 -
Less: Accumulated depreciation (3,821) -

103,928 -

Total carrying amount 365,517 155,700
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2004

CONSOLIDATED & PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003
$ $

10. PLANT, EQUIPMENT, AND VEHICLES (CONT’D)

Reconciliation

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of each class of plant,
equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of the
current financial year are set out below

Plant and equipment

Carrying amount at beginning of year 15,175 14,848
Additions 29,313 4,696
Disposals - -
Depreciation (6,727) (4,369)

Carrying amount at end of year 37,761 15,175

Office equipment

Carrying amount at beginning of year 27,125 31,264
Additions 43,976 9,732
Disposals - (1,663)
Depreciation (17,262) (12,208)

Carrying asset at end of year 53,839 27,125

Motor vehicles

Carrying amount at beginning of year 113,400 126,673
Additions 107,485 40,686
Disposals (12,237) (20,549)
Depreciation (38,659) (33,410)

Carrying amount at end of year 169,989 113,400

Site camp

Carrying amount at beginning of year - -
Additions 107,749 -
Disposals - -
Depreciation (3,821) -

Carrying amount at end of year 103,928 -

Total carrying amount 365,517 155,700

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003 2004 2003
$ $ $ $

11. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION EXPENDITURE (NON-CURRENT)

Exploration and evaluation expenditure in respect of areas of interest
still in the exploration and/or evaluation phase (refer to Note 20)

Balance at beginning of year 6,973,567 6,634,084 6,973,567 6,633,904

Current year's expenditure net of recoveries 1,734,303 968,112 1,734,303 968,112

Disposal of tenements (2,807,432) - (2,807,432) -

Expenditure provided or written off in current year (343,748) (628,449) (343,748) (628,449)

Amount deconsolidated - (180) - -

Balance at end of year 5,556,690 6,973,567 5,556,690 6,973,567

Recoverability of the parent entity's and consolidated entity's interests in property, plant, equipment, vehicles and capitalised exploration
and development expenditure is subject to the successful development and exploitation of the projects owned by the consolidated entity
and/or sale of the parent entity's and consolidated entity's interests therein at amounts at least equal to book values.
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CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003 2004 2003
$ $ $ $

12. PAYABLES (CURRENT)

Trade creditors and accruals 90,062 148,790 90,062 148,790

Amounts owing to director related entities 4,548 73,000 4,548 73,000

94,610 221,790 94,610 221,790

The current accounts with director related entities are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of repayments.

13. PROVISIONS

Employee entitlements (current) 66,333 39,166 66,333 39,166

Employee entitlements (non-current) 22,197 15,441 22,197 15,441

88,530 54,607 88,530 54,607

Number of employees at year end 13 10 13 10

14. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Issued and paid up capital
73,878,726 ordinary fully paid shares
(2003: 58,229,751) 22,842,673 18,307,061

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY & PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003

NUMBER AMMOUNT NUMBER AMMOUNT

$ $

Movement in issued capital

Balance at beginning of year 58,229,751 18,307,061 43,947,039 14,941,185

Issue on exercise of options 1,220,000 380,630 - -

Issue of shares to acquire tenements 750,000 375,000 - -

Private placement of shares 7,800,000 3,510,000 7,595,185 1,974,748

Public placement of shares - - 3,532,644 812,508

1 for 10 renounceable rights issue 5,878,975 2,116,431 - -

Return of capital via in specie distribution - (1,846,449) - -

Issue under share purchase plan - - 3,154,883 725,623

73,878,726 22,842,673 58,229,751 18,454,064

Less:  Share issues costs - - - (147,003)

73,878,726 22,842,673 58,229,751 18,307,061
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CONSOLIDATED & PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003
NUMBER NUMBER

14. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY (CONT’D)

Movements in options

The following are movements in options to subscribe for ordinary fully paid shares:-

Exercisable at 47.5 cents* (2003: 50 cents*) on or before 28 February 2007

Balance at beginning of year 1,975,000 1,975,000
Issued during the year - -
Exercised during the year (204,000) -
Options lapsed during the year - -

Balance at end of year 1,771,000 1,975,000

Exercisable at 68 cents on or before 28 April 2004
Balance at beginning of year 422,000 422,000
Issued during the year - -
Exercised during the year - -
Options lapsed during the year (422,000) -

Balance at end of year - 422,000

Exercisable at CDN 56 cents on or before 30 April 2004
Balance at beginning of year 181,250 181,250
Issued during the year - -
Exercised during the year - -
Options lapsed during the year (181,250) -

Balance at end of year - 181,250

Exercisable at 20.5 cents* (2003: 23 cents*) on or before 30 April 2005
Balance at beginning of year 3,532,644 -
Issued during the year - 3,532,644
Exercised during the year (481,000) -
Options lapsed during the year - -

Balance at end of year 3,051,644 3,532,644

Exercisable at 32.5 cents* (2003: 35 cents*) on or before 28 March 2008

Balance at beginning of year 1,950,000 -
Issued during the year - 1,950,000
Exercised during the year (705,000) -
Options lapsed during the year - -

Balance at end of year 1,245,000 1,950,000

Exercisable at 65.5 cents* on or before 20 November 2007
Balance at beginning of year - -
Issued during the year 11,000,000 -
Exercised during the year - -
Options lapsed during the year - -

Balance at end of year 11,000,000 -

Exercisable at 67.5 cents* on or before 26 February 2009
Balance at beginning of year - -
Issued during the year 1,970,000 -
Exercised during the year - -
Options lapsed during the year - -

Balance at end of year 1,970,000 -
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CONSOLIDATED & PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003
NUMBER NUMBER

14. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY (CONT’D)

Exercisable at 47.5 cents* on or before 20 April 2009
Balance at beginning of year - -
Issued during the year 375,000 -
Exercised during the year - -
Options lapsed during the year - -

Balance at end of year 375,000 -

* In accordance with Rule 7.22.3 of the Listing Rules, the exercise prices of all options have been reduced by the same amount as the 
amount returned in respect of each Thundelarra share as a result of the in-specie distribution of 18,464,486 shares in United Gold 
Ltd to its shareholders on 22 April 2004.  Accordingly, the amount of the reduction was $0.025 per option.

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003 2004 2003
$ $ $ $

15. ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Accumulated losses at the beginning of the year (9,186,097) (7,522,948) (9,186,097) (7,520,625)

Net loss attributable to members of the parent entity (2,265,808) (1,663,149) (2,265,808) (1,665,472)

Accumulated losses at the end of the year (11,451,905) (9,186,097) (11,451,905) (9,186,097)

16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(i) Exploration commitments

In order to maintain current rights of tenure to exploration tenements, the consolidated and parent entity is required to perform 
minimum exploration work to meet the minimum expenditure requirements specified by various State Governments.  These 
obligations are subject to renegotiation when application for a mining lease is made and at other times.  These obligations are not 
provided for in the financial report and are payable:-

CONSOLIDATED & PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003
$ $

Within one year 1,195,063 2,034,293

Later than one year but not later than five years 4,780,252 8,137,172

Later than five years 1,195,063 760,000

7,170,378 10,931,465

If the company decides to relinquish certain tenements and / or does not meet these obligations, assets recognised in the statement of
financial position may require review to determine the appropriateness of the carrying values.  The sole transfer or farm out of
exploration rights to third parties will reduce or extinguish these obligations.

(ii) Operating lease commitments

Operating lease commitments are as follows:-

Office rental 91,280 91,280

Within one year 22,820 114,100
Later than one year but not later than five years 114,100 205,380

(iii) Native Title

At the date of this report, claims had been lodged in relation to tenements held by the consolidated entity.  
The effect (if any) that these claims will have, or which future claims will have on the consolidated entity's tenements 
is not yet known.
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(iv) Provision of finance facility

The Company has agreed to provide the necessary working capital to United Gold Ltd until such time as United Gold Ltd secures 
its own funds.

(v) Contingent liabilities

In the opinion of Directors, there were no contingent liabilities at 30 September 2004 and subsequent to the date of this report.

17. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Remuneration of specified directors and specified executives by the consolidated entity

Executive Directors and key executives are remunerated by way of a salary or consultancy fees, commensurate with their required level of
services.  Non-executive Directors receive a fixed monthly fee for their services.  The Company does not have any executive other than
executive directors.  The Board has not formally constituted a Nomination Committee or Remuneration Committee.  The whole Board
conducts the functions of a Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.  The Company does not have any scheme relating to
retirement benefits for Non-executive Directors.

Details of Specified Directors

Specified directors

P G Crabb Executive Chairman R W Crabb Non-Executive Director
B Richardson Executive Director M J Randall Non-Executive Director
F DeMarte Executive and Finance Director J C Caddy Non-Executive Director (resigned on 14 April 2004)

Remuneration of Specified Directors

POST OTHER   EQUITY TOTAL
PRIMARY EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Specified Directors Base Consultancy Superannuation Termination
Emoluments Fees Benefits Options

$ $ $ $ $ $

P G Crabb 2004 118,500 - 31,500 - 155,000 305,000

2003 84,808 - 21,833 - 40,230 146,871

B Richardson 2004 65,200 22,210 29,800 - 108,500 225,710

2003 65,150 39,996 14,800 - 31,290 151,236

F DeMarte 2004 96,000 - 39,000 - 108,500 243,500

2003 97,846 - 24,000 - 31,290 153,136

R W Crabb 2004 - 28,861 2,580 - 46,500 77,941

2003 22,938 57,310 2,064 - 13,410 95,722

M J Randall 2004 - 25,249 - - 46,500 71,749

2003 - 21,736 - - 13,410 35,146

J C Caddy 2004 - - - 85,230 46,500 131,730

2003 - 39,800 - - 13,410 53,210

Total 2004 279,700 76,320 102,880 85,230 511,500 1,055,630

Remuneration: 2003 270,742 158,842 62,697 - 143,040 635,321

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricing model with the following assumptions used
for grants made:

2004

Exercise price 0.70*

Share price on grant date 0.52

Volatility 75%

Risk-free interest rate 5.81%
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2003

Exercise price 0.35*

Share price on grant date 0.23

Volatility 50%

Risk-free interest rate 5.50%

The expected life of the option is based on five years from date of issue.  The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

* The exercise prices of options has been reduced by $0.025 per option equivalent to the amount returned in respect of each 
Thundelarra shares as a result of the in-specie distribution of 18,464,486 shares in United Gold Ltd to its shareholders on 22 April 
2004.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Option holdings

The movement during the reporting period in the number of options over ordinary shares held, directly, indirectly or beneficially by each
specified director, including their personally-related entities, is as follows:

Held at Held at date of Granted as Other Held at date Held at 30
1 Oct 2003 appointment remuneration Exercised changes* of resignation Sept t 2004

Specified directors

P G Crabb
Tranche 1 450,000 - - (450,000) - - -
Tranche 2 450,000 - - - - - 450,000
Tranche 3 - - 500,000 - - - 500,000
Tranche 4 - - - - 375,000 - 375,000

B Richardson
Tranche 1 350,000 - - - - - 350,000
Tranche 2 150,000 - - - - - 150,000
Tranche 3 - - 350,000 - - - 350,000

F DeMarte
Tranche 1 350,000 - - - - - 350,000
Tranche 2 550,000 - - - - - 550,000
Tranche 3 - - 350,000 - - - 350,000

R W Crabb
Tranche 1 150,000 - - - - - 150,000
Tranche 2 100,000 - - - - - 100,000
Tranche 3 - - 150,000 - - - 150,000

M J Randall
Tranche 1 150,000 - - - - - 150,000
Tranche 2 100,000 - - - - - 100,000
Tranche 3 - - 150,000 - - - 150,000

J C Caddy
Tranche 1 150,000 - - (150,000) - - -
Tranche 2 200,000 - - (79,000) - 121,000 -
Tranche 3 - - 150,000 - - 150,000 -

* Other changes represents the net movement in options that were expired or were forfeited or were granted other than 
remuneration during the year.

Tranche 1 Options - options over ordinary shares exercisable at 32.5 cents (2003: 35 cents) on or before 28 March 2008. 

Tranche 2 Options - options over ordinary shares exercisable at 47.5 cents (2003: 50 cents) on or before 28 February 2007.

Tranche 3 Options - options over ordinary shares exercisable at 67.5 cents on or before 26 February 2009.

Tranche 4 Options - options over ordinary shares exercisable at 47.5 cents on or before 20 April 2009.  These options were issued to a 
director related entity as part of the consideration in acquiring the Water Tank Project.
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EQUITY HOLDINGS AND TRANSACTIONS

The movement during the reporting period in the number of ordinary shares held, directly, indirectly or beneficially by each specified
director, including their personally-related entities, is as follows:

Specified Held at Held at date of Granted on Other changes (net Held at date Held at 30
directors 1 Oct 2003 appointment excersise of of sale and of resignation of resignation 

options purchase)

P G Crabb 14,067,195 - 450,000 1,671,294 - 16,188,489

B Richardson 1,141,739 - - (105,158) - 1,036,581

F DeMarte 1,672,478 - - (217,752) - 1,454,726

R W Crabb 1,137,390 - - (109,060) - 1,028,330

M J Randall 263,000 - - - - 263,000

J C Caddy 85,042 - 229,000 - 314,042 -

18,366,844 - 679,000 1,239,324 314,042 19,971,126

Other transactions with the Company

A number of specified Directors, or their personally-related entities, hold positions in other entities that result in them having control or
significant influence over the financial or operating policies of those entities.

A number of those entities transacted with the Company during the financial year.  The terms and conditions of those transactions were
no more favourable than those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to unrelated
entities on an arm’s length basis.

Details of the transactions are as follows:

(1) On 22 April 2004, the shareholders of the Company approved the acquisition of a 100% equity in the Water Tank tenements located
in Norseman from Darkdale Pty Ltd, a related entity to P G Crabb, by issuing 750,000 ordinary fully paid shares at 50 cents each in
the capital of the Company and 375,000 unquoted options exercisable at 47.5 cents each with an expiry date of 20 April 2009;

(2) The Company has entered into a sale and purchase agreement with United Gold Ltd (a director related entity) to transfer all its gold
properties with the consideration of the issue of 19,350,000 United Gold Ltd shares at an issue price of 10 cents each.  Costs of
tenements transferred amount to $2,711,927.

(3) The Company has taken out Directors and Officers liability insurance at a cost of $18,004 (2003: $13,750);

(4) Legal fees of $102,127 (2003: $57,310) were paid to Blakiston & Crabb, a legal firm in which Mr R W Crabb was a partner.

(5) During the year, the Company purchased a vehicle costing $12,000 from Ragged Range Mining Pty Ltd, a related entity of P G Crabb.

Loans with specified directors and their related entities

Details regarding loans outstanding at the reporting date to specified directors and their personally-related entities, where the individual
aggregate loan balance exceeded $100,000 at any time in the reporting period, are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY & PARENT ENTITY

Balance at Balance Highest interest
1 October 30 September balance in paid

2003 2004 the year or payable
$ $ $ $

(i)  Loan provided to United Gold Ltd - 156,265 156,265 -

(ii) Loan provided to Aldershot Resources Ltd 11,973 22,061 196,851 -

The loans provided to the above director-related entities are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment.  

(i) R W Crabb, B Richardson and F DeMarte are also directors of United Gold Ltd.  P G Crabb has a substantial interest in the
company, both directly and indirectly;

(ii) J C Caddy (former director) and P G Crabb are also directors of Aldershot Resources Ltd.  Both P G Crabb and J C Caddy have
substantial interests in the company, both directly and indirectly.

The Company has agreed to provide the necessary working capital to United Gold Ltd until such time as United Gold Ltd secures its own
funds.
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18. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The consolidated entity operates predominantly in the mining industry and principally within the geographical areas of Australia and
Canada.  Geographic segment information is as follows:-

Australia Canada Total
$ $ $

(i) 2004

Revenue from operating activities 2,261,816 - 2,261,816

Consolidated entity operating loss after income tax (2,265,808) - (2,265,808)

Exploration and evaluation expenditure 5,556,690 - 5,556,690

Other assets 6,017,218 - 6,017,218

Segment assets 11,573,908 - 11,573,908

Segment liabilities 183,140 - 183,140

Acquisition of plant, equipment, vehicles,
and exploration and evaluation expenditure 2,022,826 - 2,022,826
Depreciation 66,469 - 66,469

Other non-cash expenses 378,271 - 378,271

(II) 2003

Revenue from operating activities 102,246 1,575 103,821

Consolidated entity operating loss after income tax (1,517,122) (146,027) (1,663,149)

Exploration and evaluation expenditure 6,973,567 - 6,973,567

Other assets 2,408,055 15,739 2,423,794

Segment assets 9,381,622 15,739 9,397,361

Segment liabilities 276,397 - 276,397

Acquisition of plant, equipment, vehicles,
and exploration and evaluation expenditure 1,023,226 - 1,023,226

Depreciation 49,468 519 49,987

Other non-cash expenses 667,260 - 667,260
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CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003 2004 2003
$ $ $ $

19. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

The following total remuneration was received or receivable by
The auditors of the parent entity in respect of:

Auditing or reviewing the financial report 14,500 16,666 14,500 16,666

Other services

- preparation of investigation report for United Gold Ltd 3,326 - 3,326 -

- other professional services 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

20. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

The consolidated entity has interests in joint ventures as follows:

Expenditure
Principal capitalised at

Joint Venture Activities Percentage Interest 30 September 2004

2004 2003 $

Unincorporated

Phillips Range Project Diamonds Diluting to 55% Diluting to 55% 2,400,000

Copernicus/Salk ML JV Nickel/Copper Diluting to 40% Diluting to 40% 678,460

3,078,460

CONSOLIDATED & PARENT ENTITY

2004 2003
$ $

21. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 70,616,186 47,987,012

The diluted earnings per share (cents per share) has not been disclosed as it
does not result in an inferior position to both the consolidated entity and parent entity.

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fixed Interest Rate Maturing

2004 Floating 1 year Over 1-5 Non interest 
Interest Rate or less years bearing Total

$ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets

Cash (14,486) 5,070,722 - 33 5,056,269

Receivables - 159,769 - 193,810 353,579

Other financial assets - - - 238,231 238,231

Total Financial Assets (14,486) 5,230,491 - 432,074 5,648,079

Financial Liabilities

Payables - - - (94,610) (94,610)

Total Financial Liabilities - - - (94,610) (94,610)

Net Financial Assets/(Liabilities) (14,486) 5,230,491 - 337,464 5,553,469

Weighted Average Interest Rate 2.6% 5.3%
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Fixed Interest Rate Maturing

2003 Floating 1 year Over 1-5 Non interest 
Interest Rate or less years bearing Total

$ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets

Cash 2,003,228 103,870 - 8 2,107,106

Receivables - 130,000 - 30,988 160,988

Total Financial Assets 2,003,228 233,870 - 30,996 2,268,094

Financial Liabilities 

Payables - - - (221,790) (221,790)

Total Financial Liabilities - - - (221,790) (221,790)

Net Financial Assets/(Liabilities) 2,003,228 233,870 - (190,794) 2,046,304

Weighted Average Interest Rate 3.4% 4.3%

Reconciliation of Net Financial Assets/(Liabilities) to Net Assets

2004 2003

$ $

Net Financial Assets/(Liabilities) 5,553,469 2,046,304

Prepayments 3,622 -

Plant, Equipment and Vehicles 365,517 155,700

Exploration & Evaluation Expenditure 5,556,690 6,973,567

Provisions (88,530) (54,607)

Net Assets 11,390,768 9,120,964

(a) Credit Risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, net of any provisions for doubtful debts of
those assets, is as disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position and notes to the financial statements.

The consolidated entity does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of debtors under financial
instruments entered into by the economic entity.

(b) Net Fair Values

The net fair value of cash and cash equivalents and non-interest bearing monetary financial assets and financial liabilities of the
consolidated entity approximates their carrying amounts.
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23. EQUITY BASED PLANS

Employee Share Incentive Option Plan

The Employee Share Incentive Option Plan (“ESIOP”) was adopted by the board of the Company on 16 January 2004.

The ESIOP is available to any person who is a director, a consultant or an employee (whether full-time of part-time) of the Company or of
an associated body corporate of the Company (“Eligible Person”).

Subject to the Rules set out in ESIOP and the Listing Rules, the Company (acting through the Board) may offer options to any Eligible
Person at such time and on such terms as the Board considers appropriate.  Some of the Rules include:

(i) No consideration is payable by an Eligible Person for a grant of an option, unless the Board decides otherwise.

(ii) The method of calculation of the exercise price of each option will be determined by the Board with regard to the market value of the
shares when it resolves to offer the option.

(iii) Exercisable period will be determined by the Board prior to the offer of the relevant options, subject to any restriction in the 
Corporations Act from time to time but in any event no longer than 5 years from the issue date.

(iv) The Board may impose exercise conditions on any issue as it thinks appropriate.

Options may be exercised at any time during the period commencing on the issue date to the earlier of their expiry date or termination of
the employee’s employment.

There are no voting or dividend rights attached to the options.  There are no voting rights attached to the unissued ordinary shares.
Voting rights will be attached to the unissued ordinary shares when the options have been exercised.

Summary of options over unissued ordinary shares

Details of options over unissued ordinary shares as at the beginning and ending of the reporting date and movements during the year are
set out in below:

Grant date Vesting date Expiry Exercise Number of Options Options Number of 
on or after date price options at granted exercised options at

beginning of year end of year

2004
27 February 27 February 26 February 67.5 cents - 1,970,000 - 1,970,000
2004 2004 2009

24. POST BALANCE DATE EVENTS

Since the end of the financial year, the following transactions and events in the opinion of directors, are likely to affect significantly the
operations of the Company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company:

(i) The Company has entered into a Sale Agreement with United Kimberley Diamonds NL (“UKD”) on 29 September 2004 whereby UKD
will acquire the 95% interest in the Phillips Range Diamond Joint Venture from the Company.  

The consideration for the sale of the Company’s diamond interest to UKD is the issue of:

(a) 20,000,000 ordinary fully paid shares in the capital of UKD; and

(b) 5,000,000 options to acquire the same number of fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of UKD with an exercise price of 20 cents 
each and expiring on 31 July 2008.

The sale is conditional upon and subject to UKD’s admission to the Official List of Australian Stock Exchange Limited (“ASX”).  On 22
November 2004, the Company was informed by the Board of UKD that the IPO has been closed and fully subscribed.  The securities were
listed on 9 December 2004.  At that time, the Company held approximately 23% of the shares in UKD.

(ii) The attempt to list United Gold Ltd has been closed unsuccessfully on 25 October 2004.

Other than the above, there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect significantly the operations of the
Company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company. 
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25. ADOPTION OF AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

Australia is currently preparing for the introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) effective for financial years
commencing 1 January 2005. This requires the production of accounting data for future comparative purposes at the beginning of the
next financial year.  The Company’s management, along with its auditors, are assessing the significance of these changes and preparing
for their implementation.  An IFRS committee has been established to oversee and manage the Company’s transition to IFRS.  We will
seek to keep stakeholders informed as to the impact of these new standards as they are finalised.  The directors are of the opinion that
the key differences in the Company’s accounting policies which will arise from the adoption of IFRS are:

Impairment of Assets

The Company currently determines the recoverable amount of an asset on the basis of undiscounted net cash flows that will be received
from the assets use and subsequent disposal.  In terms of pending AASB 136: Impairment of Assets, the recoverable amount of an asset
will be determined as the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  It is likely that this change in accounting policy will lead to
impairments being recognised more often than under the existing policy.

Income Tax

Currently, the Company adopts the liability method of tax-effect accounting whereby the income tax expense is based on the accounting
profit adjusted for any permanent differences.  Timing differences are currently brought to account as either a provision for deferred
income tax or future income tax benefit.  Under the Australian equivalent to IAS 12, the economic entity will be required to adopt a
balance sheet approach under which temporary differences are identified for each asset and liability rather than the effects of the timing
and permanent differences between taxable income and accounting profit.

Exploration Expenditure

AASB was informed by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that at a recent meeting, the IASB decided to fully
grandfather national GAAP, such as Australia's existing area of interest method of accounting for exploration costs, for both producers
and exporters, until such time as the IASB produces a comprehensive extractive industry IFRS.

As soon as the IASB has incorporated this decision into its standards, the AASB will produce an Australian equivalent so as to allow
extractive industry companies to take advantage of the grandfathering in their 2005 transition to Australian equivalents of IFRSs.

Due to the above issues the impact of changes from the current AASB 1022 are not yet determinable.

Financial Instruments

Investment available for sale are to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value, recognised in equity subject to impairment.

- Investments in marketable securities are to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Statements of 
Financial Performance as an expense or income.

- Investments/Financial assets or liabilities carried at fair value through the Statements of Financial Performance.
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The Directors of the Company declare that:

(1) the financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 19 to 42.

(a) comply with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001; and

(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 September 2004 and of the performance of the Company,

as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows, for the year ended on that date;

(2) in the Directors' opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as

and when they become due and payable.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Philip G Crabb

DIRECTOR

20 December 2004
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STANTON PARTNERS
1 HAVELOCK STREET

WEST PERTH 6005 
WESTERN AUSTRALIA

TELEPHONE: (08) 9481 3188 

Facsimile: (08) 9321 1204 

e-mail: australia@stanton.com.au

SCOPE

The financial report and directorsʼ responsibility
The financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance,
statement of cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the directorsʼ declaration
for Thundelarra Exploration Limited (the Company)and the consolidated entity for the year ended30
September 2004. The consolidated entity comprises both the company and the entities it controlled
during the year. The directors of the Company are responsiblefor the preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes
responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accountingrecords and internal controls that are
designedto prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting
estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit approach
We conductedan independent audit in order to expressan opinion to the members of the Company.
Our audit was conducted in accordancewith Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide 
reasonableassurance as to whether thefinancial report is free of material misstatement. The nature of
an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the
inherent limitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive 
evidence. Therefore,anauditcannot guarantee thatall material misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly,
in accordance with the CorporationsAct 2001, including compliance with Accounting Standards and
other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our 
understandingof the Companyʼs and the consolidated entityʼs financial position, and of their
performance as represented by the results of their operations and cash flows. 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
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We formed our opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

• examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report, and

• assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors. 

While we considered the effectiveness of managementʼs internal controls over financial reporting
when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide 
assurance on internal controls. 

INDEPENDENCE

In conducting our audit, we followed applicableindependence requirements of Australianprofessional
ethical pronouncements and theCorporations Act 2001.

AUDIT OPINION

In our opinion, the financial report of Thundelarra Exploration Limited is in accordance with: 

a) the Corporations Act 2001, including: 

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Companyʼs and consolidated entityʼs financial positionas
at 30 September 2004 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and 

(ii) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the CorporationsRegulations 2001; 
and

b) other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia. 

STANTON PARTNERS 

J P Van Dieren 
Partner

Perth, Western Australia
20 December 2004 
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The following information dated 17 December 2004 is required by the Listing Rules of the Australian Stock Exchange Ltd

1. DISTRIBUTION OF LISTED ORDINARY SHARES AND OPTIONS

Distribution Number of Shareholders Number of Option Holders

1– 1,000 150 -
1,001 – 5,000 479 1

5,001 – 10,000 305 10
10,001 –100,000 616 31
100,001 and over 101 7

1,651 49

(a) There were 68 shareholders holding less than a marketable parcel.
(b) The percentage of the total of the twenty largest holders of ordinary shares was 53.35 %.

2. TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AND OPTION HOLDERS

The names of the twenty largest shareholders are listed below:

Name Number of Shares Held %  

Ragged Range Mining Pty Ltd & Associates 16,538,489 22.38

LionOre Australia Pty Ltd 7,800,000 10.56

ANZ Nominees Limited 3,873,458 5.24

AMP Life Limited 1,760,303 2.38

Cogent Nominees Pty Ltd (SMP Accounts) 1,704,374 2.31

Mr Frank DeMarte & Associates 1,454,726 1.97

Mr Brian Richardson 1,036,581 1.40

Mr Stacey A Radford 933,549 1.26

Rick W Crabb & Carol J Crabb (Intermax Fund Account) 671,565 0.91

Gurravembi Investments Pty Ltd 660,000 0.89

Mr Simon Attwell 550,000 0.74

Mrs Olive J Dunstan 520,000 0.70

Graham Properties Pty Ltd (The Graham Super Fund A/C) 503,373 0.68

NEFCO Nominees Pty Ltd 500,000 0.68

Fortis Clearing Nominees P/L Settlement 458,749 0.62

Mr John Falconer 408,261 0.55

Mr Trevor G Brookes 379,500 0.51

Westessa Holdings Pty Ltd 356,765 0.48

Mrs Jennifer L Hosken 353,439 0.48

P S Consulting Pty Ltd 350,000 0.47

Total 40,813,132 55.21
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The names of the twenty largest listed option holders are listed below:

Name Number of Options Held %  

Mr Stacey A Radford 370,000 12.16

M Burton Pty Limited (Super Fund Account) 220,000 7.23

Mega-Min Resources NL (Mega-Min Account) 200,000 6.58

S C Biggs Pty Ltd 200,000 6.58

Michael Angelakis Nominees Pty Ltd 157,944 5.19

P S Consulting Pty Ltd 111,700 3.67

Lincris Investments Pty Limited 110,000 3.62

JW Crabb & Co Pty Ltd 100,000 3.29

Qualiform Pty Ltd 100,000 3.29

Splicer Nominees Pty Ltd 100,000 3.29

Super 1136 Pty Ltd 100,000 3.29

Sutton Nominees Pty Ltd (WM Gatacre Family Fund A/C) 100,000 3.29

Bethania Trading Co Pty Ltd (Investment Account) 95,000 3.12

Mr Terry R Moore 90,000 2.96

Westglade Pty Ltd 90,000 2.96

Mr Anthony E Bradfield 75,000 2.47

Mrs Kerry Boothey 67,000 2.20

Geared Investments Pty Ltd 61,000 2.01

Mrs June W Crabb 50,000 1.64

Geared Investments Pty Ltd 50,000 1.64

Total 2,447,644 80.48

3. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

An extract from the Company’s register of substantial shareholders is set out below:

Name Number of Shares Held %

Ragged Range Mining Pty Ltd & Associates 16,538,489 22.38
LionOre Australia Pty Ltd 7,800,000 10.56
ANZ Nominees Limited 3,873,458 5.24

4. VOTING RIGHTS

The Company’s share capital is of one class with the following voting rights:

(a) Ordinary Shares

On a show of hands every shareholder present in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each share shall have one vote.

(b) Options

The Company’s options have no voting rights.

5. STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

Thundelarra Exploration Limited ordinary shares on all member exchanges of the Australian Stock Exchange Limited.  The home exchange
is the Australian Stock Exchange (Perth) Limited.

6. RESTRICTED SECURITIES

There are no ordinary shares on issue that have been classified by the Australian Stock Exchange Limited, Perth as restricted securities.

47

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

 



Tenement Tenement Name Holder/ Shares Status

Number and Type Applicant Held

CENTRAL KIMBERLEY 

E80/1499 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths Granted17/02/92

E80/2306 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths 13/11/97

E80/2307 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths 13/11/97

E80/2486 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100thsGranted 06/04/00

E80/2462 Phillips Range RRM 55/100ths Pending
THX 45/100ths (applied 10/03/99)

E80/2510 Phillips Range RRM 56/100ths Pending
THX 44/100ths (applied 03/09/99)

E80/2561 Phillips Range RRM 56/100ths Pending
THX 44/100ths (applied 22/00/00)

E80/2630 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Pending
THX 95/100ths (applied 25/08/00)

E80/2650 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Pending
THX 95/100ths (applied 27/10/00)

E80/2652 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Pending
THX 95/100ths (applied 08/11/00)

E80/2684 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Pending
THX 95/100ths (applied 22/12/00) 

ELA80/2699 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Pending
THX 95/100ths (applied 18/01/01)

M80/329 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths 26/07/91

M80/331 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths 21/12/91

ML80/489 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths 27/07/98

MLA80/545 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Pending
THX 95/100ths (applied 09/09/03)

P80/1294 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths 28/07/94

P80/1295 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths 28/07/94

PLA80/1375 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths 20/11/02

P80/1376 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths 20/11/02

P80/1377 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths 20/11/02

P80/1378 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths 20/11/02

P80/1379 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths 20/11/02

P80/1380 Phillips Range RRM 5/100ths Granted
THX 95/100ths 20/11/02

P80/1500 Phillips Range RRM 56/100ths Granted
THX 44/100ths 4/12/02

P80/1501 Phillips Range RRM 56/100ths Granted
THX 44/100ths 4/12/02

EAST KIMBERLEY

E80/2569 Big Ben THX 100/100ths Granted 23/08/01

E80/2578 Alice Hill North THX 100/100ths Granted 23/08/01

ELA80/3268 Armanda River THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 06/10/03)

ELA80/3276 Turkey Hill THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 23/10/03)

ELA80/3283 Turner Spring THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 05/11/03)

ELA80/3284 Chinamans THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 07/11/03)
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ELA80/3293 Spring Creek Fork THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 19/11/03)

ELA80/3294 West Spring Creek THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 19/11/03)

P80/1494 Billymac Yard THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 13/02/02)

E80/2572 Billymac Yard Attgold 100/100ths Granted 23/07/02

E80/2601 Lamboo Attgold 100/100ths Granted 29/07/02

E80/2607 Corkwood South Attgold 100/100ths Granted 23/05/02

E80/2565 West McIntosh B Wasse 0/100ths Granted 15/03/02

E80/2579 Togo Am-Aust, Wasse, Voermans 0/100ths Granted 15/03/02

E80/2634 Nine Mile THX 100/100ths Granted 02/10/01

E80/3233 Turkey Creek South THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 05/06/03)

PLA80/1502 Corkwood South THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 28/02/02)

E80/2635 Corkwood North Attgold 100/100ths Granted 23/05/02

E80/2290 Panton North THX 35/100ths Granted
KMN 65/100ths 24/06/98

E80/2751 Turkey Creek THX 100/100ths Granted 03/09/02

E80/2750 Bow River East THX 100/100ths Granted 03/09/02

E80/2749 Sally Downs Well THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 03/04/01)

E80/2748 Dave Hill THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 03/04/01)

E80/2746 Nortons THX 100/100ths Granted 18/06/02

PLA80/1519 Nortons THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 01/04/03)

E80/2716 Eileen Bore THX 100/100ths Granted 08/02/02

P80/1426 Eileen Bore THX 100/100ths Granted 20/02/02

P80/1427 Eileen Bore THX 100/100ths Granted 20/02/02

P80/1505 Eileen Bore Hamdorf Geo Services 0/100ths Granted 17/06/03

P80/1506 Eileen Bore THX 100/100ths Granted 17/06/03

ELA80/2720 Panton South THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 15/03/01)

PLA80/1496 Panton South THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 13/02/02)

ELA/2805 Panton West THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 12/09/01)

ELA80/2817 Mable Downs THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 13/11/01)

E80/2824 Mable West THX 100/100ths Granted 03/09/02

E80/2827 Bow River West THX 100/100ths Granted 07/10/02

E80/2835 McKenzie Spring THX 100/100ths Granted 07/10/02

ELA80/2836 Frog Hollow THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 24/01/02)

ELA80/2838 Edle Creek THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 29/01/02)

E80/2865 Fletcher Creek THX 100/100ths Granted 07/10/02

ELA80/2866 Warmun THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 07/02/02)

MLA80/2867 Warmun THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 07/02/02)

ELA80/2878 Frank Hill THX 100/100ths Granted 13/12/2004

MLA80/540 Copernicus THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 16/06/03)

SOUTHERN MURCHISON

E59/807 Jarabee Well THX 100/100ths Granted 13/10/97

M59/63 Baron THX 100/100ths Granted 13/10/87

E59/1108 Baron THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 23/04/02)

P59/1620 Baron THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 23/04/02)

P59/1621 Baron THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 23/04/02)

P59/1622 Baron THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 23/04/02)

P59/1623 Baron THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 23/04/02)

P59/1624 Baron THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 23/04/02)

P59/1530 Gabyon King, Lee & Mulcahy 0/100ths Granted 09/08/00

P59/1369 Pinyalling THX 100/100ths Granted 21/02/95

P59/1370 Pinyalling THX 100/100ths Granted 21/02/95

P59/1371 Pinyalling THX 100/100ths Granted 21/02/95

P59/1372 Pinyalling THX 100/100ths Granted 21/02/95

P59/1373 Pinyalling THX 100/100ths Granted 21/02/95

MLA59/518 Pinyalling THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 17/02/99)

Tenement Tenement Name Holder/ Shares Status

Number and Type Applicant Held
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L59/24 Rothsay CWG/THX 70/100ths Granted 22/08/89

M59/39 Rothsay CWG/THX 70/100ths Granted 04/12/86

M59/40 Rothsay CWG/THX 70/100ths Granted 04/12/86

E59/631 Fields Find THX 100/100ths Granted 29/08/95

E59/633 Fields Find THX 100/100ths Granted 19/10/95

E59/846 Fields Find THX 100/100ths Granted 01/07/99

E59/848 Fields Find THX 100/100ths Granted 01/07/99

E59/1149 Fields Find THX 100./100ths Pending (applied 16/10/03)

P59/1186 Fields Find THX 100/100ths Granted 23/03/93

MLA59/456 Fields Find THX 100/100ths Pending 
(marked out 20/03/97)

MLA59/581 Warriedar THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 12/02/03)

MLA59/583 Warriedar THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 22/05/03)

E59/723 Warriedar THX 100/100ths Granted 16/01/97

E59/849 Warriedar THX 100/100ths Granted 21/01/00

E59/850 Warriedar THX 100/100ths Granted 15/12/99

E59/887 Warriedar MWE 100/100ths Pending (applied 28/07/98)

E59/888 Warriedar MWE 100/100ths Pending (applied 28/07/98)

E59/935 Warriedar MWE 100/100ths Pending (applied 28/01/99)

EASTERN GOLDFIELDS

E16/175 Davyhurst THX 100/100ths Granted 16/01/02

MLA63/333 Watertank DAR 100/100ths Pending (applied 28/11/95)

P63/713 Watertank DAR 0/100ths Granted 03/12/91

P63/714 Watertank DAR 0/100ths Granted 03/12/91

P63/715 Watertank DAR 0/100ths Granted 03/12/91

WEST PILBARA

ELA47/1304 Warrambie THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 18/09/03)

ELA47/1305 Warrambie THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 18/09/03

OTHER

ELA52/1604 Prairie Downs THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 08/01/02)

ELA59/1117 Tallering THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 30/07/02)

ELA77/1204 Jilbadji THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 20/11/03)

P59/1545 Monti Cristo THX 48/100ths Granted
BYR 48/100ths 09/08/02

P59/1546 Monti Cristo THX 48/100ths Granted
BYR 48/100ths 09/08/02

P59/1547 Monti Cristo THX 48/100ths Granted
BYR 48/100ths 09/08/02

P59/1548 Monti Cristo THX 48/100ths Granted
BYR 48/100ths 09/08/02

ELA59/1125 Monti Cristo THX 100/100ths Pending (applied 16/10/02)

Key to Tenement Type:

E = Exploration License
ELA = Exploration License Application
L = Miscellaneous License
M = Mining Lease
MLA = Mining Lease Application
P = Prospecting License
PLA = Prospecting License Application

Key to Parties:

Attgold = Attgold Pty Ltd
CWG = Central West Gold
MWE = Mawson West Limited
RRM = Ragged Range Mining Pty Ltd
THX = Thundelarra Exploration Limited
KMN = Kimberley Mining NL
DAR = Darkdale Pty Ltd
BYR = Byron Exploration Pty Ltd
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2004
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